






INTRODUCTION

Over the years, TelOne has made considerable progress in redefining the business to be 
centered on people. We have taken active and systematic responsibility to our  Customers, 
Shareholder, Employees, Community and the Economy. Our strategy has been driven by 

the realisation that the business is about people and our relevance in their lives.

For us, being about people means:

• We care about creating value for our shareholder who remains committed to 
investing and supporting our programmes.

• We care about our impact on the economy of Zimbabwe and we seek to 
contribute positively at all times.

• We care about our customers, creating memorable experiences and giving value 
for their money.

• We are concerned about the wellbeing of our employees and their families and 
we seek to uplift them in every sphere of their lives.

• We are concerned about the community to which we belong as a corporate 
citizen and we shall continue to play our role in its development.

• We care about the impact of our operations on the environment and we 
continuously seek to improve our role in environment awareness.
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OUR MISSION

OUR VISION

Our  values

To provide multi-media and telecommunication services

Connectivity for everyone, everywhere in Zimbabwe by 2020 

Client focus 

Our clients are the center of our existence and we deliver superior customer service at all times.

Innovation 

We promote a culture of creativity and innovation to continuously improve our product and 
service offering.

Commitment 

We are dedicated to delivering value to all stakeholders.

Accountability 

We are accountable for our actions which will remain compliant, professional and reliable.

Teamwork 

We complement each other’s efforts in delivering superior customer service.

Excellence 

We strive to continuously improve ourselves in line with changing developments in the sector
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How We Are Organized

Retail 

Delivers multimedia and 
telecommunication services to all 

end users who include Corporates, 
Government, Households and SMEs. 
Services cover broadband, Voice and 

Value Added Services  

Infrastructure & Wholesale

Maintains our core network and delivers 
wholesale services to mobile operators, 

internet access providers and large 
enterprises

TelOne Center for Learning

Delivers a wide range of training on 
commercial and technical subjects to the 
market and is tasked with Human Capital 

Development for TelOne
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How We Are Organized (Continued)
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TelOne Infrastructure and Wholesale
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TelOne Centre for Learning
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CHAIRMAN
ENG. C. S SHAMU 
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Chairman’s Statement

2016 2015 % change

Revenue $114million $137.7million 17%▼

EBITDA $13.9million $18.8million 26% ▼

EBITDA Margin 12% 14% 2%▼

Fixed broadband subscribers 80,745 73,863 9%▲

Depreciation and amortisation $25.5million $10.6million 141%▲

Legacy loan finance charges $18million $8million 125%▲
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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MANAGING DIRECTOR 
MRS C. MTASA



Managing Director’s Report
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	 OUR 2016 PERFORMANCE

2016 2015 % change

Customer Service Centres 32 15 113%▲

CAPEX $25million $16million 56%▲

Operating Expenses $84.9 million $102.5 million 17%▼

Voice revenue $73million $97million 25%▼

Fixed Broadband Revenue $33million $28million 18% ▲

Monthly Blended ARPU $25 $32  22%▼

Staff culture index 1.84 1.67 10%▲

	 Despite the challenging operating environment experienced in 2016, TelOne remained steadfast in its commitment to 
delivering value to our clients, supporting our communities, empowering our workforce and conducting business in line 
with good corperate governance practices for sustainability. This resulted in rolling out of affordable broadband services in 
greenfield areas, expansion of the public wi-fi footprint in support of our vision of “Connectivity to everyone everywhere in 
Zimbabwe by 2020.” Our continued engagement of our work force saw the employee culture index improving by 10% to 1.84 
in 2016.  

	

	 GROWING BROADBAND REVENUES
	 The year saw the commencement of the National Broadband Project though it was delayed by 2 years due to the lengthy 

processing requirements that needed to be met with financier, China Exim Bank. The delay impacted on the speed with 
which the company could transform its fortunes where revenue mix remained predominantly driven by traditional voice 
revenue which is on a rapid decline. The project is however bringing in capacity for the company to venture into new 
services and broaden its presence in the broadband market. Data revenues are expected to grow significantly as a result. 
The company enjoyed positive growth in fixed broadband revenue which increased by 18% from $28million in 2015 to 
$33milion in 2016. Supporting the growth in fixed broadband revenue is a 9% increase in the subscriber base moving from 
73,863 in 2015 to 80,745 in 2016. 

	 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
OBJECTIVE 2016 2015 2014 2013

Revenue $114m $138m $157m $148m

Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation & Amortization (EBITDA) $13.9m $18.8m $24m $17m

Operating Profit ($6.7m) $8.2m $7m $0.8m

Total Cost to Revenue 106% 93% 96% 99%

Staff Costs to Revenue 35% 32% 32% 36%

EBITDA margin 12% 14% 15% 11%

Fixed broadband subscribers 80,745 73,863 50,570 30,800

Fixed voice subscribers 242,227 249,962 232,494 304,144
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Statement of Financial Position
					   
	 2016		  2015		
	 Without legacy loans	 With legacy loans	 Without legacy loans	 With legacy loans	
	 US$	 US$	 US$	 US$	
		
ASSETS					   
Non current assets					   
Property, plant and equipment	  306,784,610 	  306,784,610 	  292,114,969 	  292,114,969 	
Investment property	  1,034,030 	  1,034,030 	  1,052,000 	  1,052,000 	
Intangible assets	  20,628,327 	  20,628,327 	  23,557,460 	  23,557,460 	
Financial assets	  1,048,835 	  1,048,835 	  795,696 	  795,696 	
	  329,495,802 	  329,495,802 	  317,520,125 	  317,520,125 	
					   
Current assets					   
Inventory	  8,430,797 	  8,430,797 	  10,063,022 	  10,063,022 	
Tax prepaid	  2,694,089 	  2,694,089 	  448,594 	  448,594 	
Trade and other receivables	  145,537,738 	  145,537,738 	  145,741,594 	  145,741,594 	
Cash and cash equivalents	  3,585,761 	  3,585,761 	  4,526,983 	  4,526,983 	
	  160,248,385 	  160,248,385 	  160,780,193 	  160,780,193 	
TOTAL ASSETS	  489,744,187 	  489,744,187 	  478,300,318 	  478,300,318 		
	
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES					   
Capital and reserves					   
Share capital	  32 	  32 	  32 	  32 	
Legacy loans converted to equity	  364,175,674 	  - 	  347,762,306 	  - 	
Non-distributable reserves	 (9,345,589) 	 (9,345,589) 	 (21,840,273) 	 (21,840,273) 	
Mark to market reserve	  342,482 	  342,482 	  145,945 	  145,945 	
Retained loss	 (102,191,786) 	 (102,191,786) 	 (77,266,905) 	 (77,266,905) 	
	  252,980,813 	 (111,194,861) 	  248,801,105 	 (98,961,201) 	
					   
Non-current liabilities					   
Interest bearing debt: Foreign	  - 	  40,351,447 	  - 	  47,834,103
legacy loans 	
Long term trade payable	  17,365,361 	  17,365,361 	  - 	  - 	
Deferred tax liability	  63,139,834 	  63,139,834 	  69,895,542 	  69,895,542 	
Deferred income	  741,169 	  741,169 	  1,058,592 	  1,058,592 	
	  81,246,364 	  121,597,811 	  70,954,134 	  118,788,237 	
					   
Current liabilities					   
Trade and other payables	  127,924,769 	  127,924,769 	  128,769,661 	  128,769,661 	
Loan interest payable: Legacy loans	  - 	  190,492,220 	  - 	  172,005,427 	
Current portion of interest bearing	  
debt: Legacy loans 	 - 	  133,332,007 	  - 	  127,922,776	
Current portion of interest bearing	  
debt: Local loans 	 25,228,717 	  25,228,717 	  27,975,828 	  27,975,828	
Provisions	  2,363,524 	  2,363,524 	  1,799,590 	  1,799,590 	
	  155,517,010 	  479,341,237 	  158,545,079 	  458,473,282 	
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES	  489,744,187 	  489,744,187 	  478,300,318 	  478,300,318 	
					   
	
Net asset/(liability) position	  252,980,813 	 (111,194,861) 	  248,801,105 	 (98,961,201) 	
Working capital position	  4,731,375 	 (319,092,852) 	  2,235,114 	 (297,693,089) 	

	 Due to the legacy loans, the company has a weak balance sheet which affects its ability to raise own funding. The legacy 
loans are guranteed by the Government of Zimbabwe and proposals have been made for the government to take over these 
loans in a loan to equity conversion arrangement so as to strengthen the company’s balance sheet. The solid balance sheet 
will then enable the company to address further funding requirements for the capital intensive and highly competitive ICT 
sector.
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Statement of Profit or Loss

	 2016		  2015		
	 Without legacy loans	 With legacy loans	 Without legacy loans	 With legacy loans	
	 US$	 US$	 US$	 US$	

Revenue	  114,042,934 	  114,042,934 	  137,670,239 	  137,670,239 	
Payments to other operators	 (20,969,400 )	 (20,969,400)	 (27,277,485) 	 (27,277,485) 	
Net operating revenue	  93,073,534 	  93,073,534 	  110,392,754 	  110,392,754 	
Other Income	  5,425,198 	  5,425,198 	  10,618,133 	  10,618,133 	
Finance income	  319,901 	  319,901 	  260,627 	  260,627 	
Operating expenses	 (84,920,435) 	 (84,920,435) 	 (102,492,206) 	 (102,492,206) 	
Earnings before interest, tax, 	
depreciation & armotization 	  13,898,198 	  13,898,198 	  18,779,308 	  18,779,308	
Depreciation & armotization	 (25,525,565) 	 (25,525,565) 	 (10,550,830) 	 (10,550,830) 	
Finance costs	 (1,807,460) 	 (1,807,460) 	 (1,970,585) 	 (1,970,585) 	
Legacy loan expenses: finance	
costs and exchange losses/gains	  - 	 (19,274,082) 	  - 	  3,663,211
Profit before tax	 (13,434,827) 	 (32,708,909) 	  6,257,893 	  9,921,104 	
Tax expense	  7,784,027 	  7,784,027 	 (4,108,685) 	 (4,108,685) 	
Profit for the year	 (5,650,800) 	 (24,924,882) 	  2,149,208 	  5,812,419 	

	 As shown above, the company’s loss position narrows from $24.9million to $5.7million without the impact of legacy loans. 
This shows the extent of the impact of the legacy loans on the company’s ability to perform. 

	 Furthermore, the company’s loss position was exacerbated by an increased depreciation charge of $25.5million in 2016 
compared to $10.6million in 2015. The depreciation charge increased by 142% following an asset revaluation exercise 
carried out during the year.
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CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE
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Corporate Governance

Engineer C. S. Shamu
Chairman Rtd. Brig J. C. Wekwete

Deputy Chairman

Mr C. S. Chigwamba
Non-executive Director

Mrs V. M. Chasi
Non-executive Director

Mrs C. Mtasa
Managing Director

Dr. S. Z. Gata
Non-executive Director

Rtd Flt. Lt. W. Musungwa
Non-executive Director

Ms S. E. Sibanda
Non-executive Director

THE BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS
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Corporate Governance (Continued)
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Corporate Governance (Continued)
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	 Annual board evaluation

	 A Board Self Evaluation System is in place for the evaluation of the performance of individual Board Members on an annual 
basis. The last such evaluation was carried out in 2016.

	

	 Directors’ meeting attendance 

	 All directors attended at least 70% of meetings during the year as shown below.

MEETINGS NO. OF 
MEETINGS

C. S.SHAMU J.C. WEKWETE C.S. CHIGWAMBA S.E. SIBANDA V.M. CHASI S.Z. GATA W. MUSUNGWA C. MTASA

MAIN BOARD 7 6 5 7 6 5 7 6 7

HUMAN RESOURCES 4 N/A N/A 4 4 3 N/A 3 4

FINANCE & AUDIT 5 N/A 3 N/A 5 3 3 N/A 5

BMT 5 N/A 5 4 N/A N/A 4 4 5

AGM 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Meeting attendance % 88% 78% 94% 94% 71% 83% 82% 100%

	

	 Director tenure
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Mr J. Machiva
Divisional Director Retail

Mrs C. Mtasa
Managing Director

Mrs E. Chivaviro
Finance and Administration Director

Engineer L. Nkala
Divisional Director Infrastructure 

and Wholesale

Engineer J. Munembe
Innovation Executive

Mr H. Zinyau
Corporate Services Director

Mrs C. Sandura
Company Secretary and Legal Advisor 

Mr K. Musundire
Audit and Risk Executive

Executive
Committee
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Our Strategy

CONNECTIVITY FOR EVERYONE
EVERYWHERE IN ZIMBABWE
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Our Strategy (Continued)



SUSTAINABILITY REPORT



The company is guided by a sustainability strategy that is developed and approved by the board of directors. The guiding prin-
ciple for our sustainability strategy is that of creating value for our shareholder, delivering exceptional service to our customers, 
creating awareness as well as accountability for the general well-being of the environment and the communities in which we 
operate. This has entailed TelOne taking responsibility of the fact that we contribute significantly to environmental degradation 
through trenching, bush cutting, carbon emissions and accumulation of waste.

A Corporate Social Investment function is in place that is accountable to the Board through the office of the Managing Director. 
Quarterly reports are compiled for tracking implementation and effectiveness. CSI is also guided by a stakeholder matrix that 
requires inclusiveness, transparency and accountability.

Determination of Materiality for Reporting Purposes

TelOne’s approach to identifying material aspects for disclosure is influenced by the stakeholder engagement process and areas 
relevant to the business under the ZIMASSET blueprint. Material sustainability issues are identified as those areas which have a 
high impact on our shareholder, the company’s operations, our customers, our employees and the communities we operate in. 

Our approach to determining materiality for reporting is guided by the GRI’s Sustainability Reporting Guidelines. It is our 
expectation that with stakeholder engagements planned for 2017 and beyond there will be improved alignment of materiality as 
observed by our different stakeholders. 

Stakeholder engagements

Our relations with stakeholders remain an integral part of our operations and successful implementation of our business 
strategy. We therefore engage stakeholders with the spirit of inclusivity and responsiveness. The stakeholders are engaged 
systematically and informally through organized meetings and events as well as informal discussions. 

Stakeholder feedback is monitored centrally through the Corporate Communications office.  Monthly reports are tabled and 
assessed by the Executive Management Committee from which implementation of various actions is also monitored. 

Our operating divisions are expected to maintain excellent stakeholder relations and this remains a key performance issue 
for the respective divisions through their heads. The Board monitors the overall stakeholder performance and the Managing 
Director is assessed on this matrix.

The table below shows a summary of key engagements held during the year:

Stakeholder Significant issues discussed in engagements Outcome Mitigating actions taken to resolve issues

Shareholder •	 AGM held to approve financial 
statements and provide feedback on 
operations

•	 Strategic planning and target setting

•	 Quarterly performance feedback and 
monitoring to be held with the Minister 
of ICT, Postal and Courier Services.

•	 Shared vision and goals

•	 Improved Corporate Governance

•	 Continued engagement on legacy 
loans, Government debtors and set-
off arrangements

Customers •	 Customer feedback campaigns

•	 Customer Satisfaction Surveys

•	 Social media forums

•	 Product and e-commerce platform 
launch events

•	 31 new client service centres 
opened 

•	 Business re-organized into Retail 
and Infrastructure divisions

•	 24 hour customer contact centre 
established.

Service turnaround times revised and 
monitored systematically.

Corporate clients help desk established

Network redundancy addressed through 
new upstream and terrestrial links.

•	 Credit control interventions

•	 Recovery of amounts owed to the 
business

•	 Collections affected by 
inconsistent Government set-off 
arrangements in year 2016.

•	 Collected $85million cash in 2016 
(2015: $88million). 

•	 Payment plans revised and accepted 

•	 Set-off arrangements encouraged

•	 Litigation in some cases

•	 Increased payment platforms

Our Sustainability Strategy
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Our Sustainability Strategy (Continued)

Media •	 Quarterly media events

•	 Timely response to ad-hoc media issues

•	 Formal press releases on company 
updates

•	 Improved media coverage and 
brand presence and prominence in 
the market place.

•	 Continuous engagement and 
monitoring of reports.

Communities •	 Discussions with local authorities and 
institutions of higher learning 

•	 Donate a bin and clean up 
campaigns

•	 Community awareness and uptake 
of TelOne services

•	 Add-a-brick campaign was 
launched

•	 Provide a meal-campaign for 
drought alleviation

•	 Assessment of impact of activities 
underway

Employees •	 Conditions of service engagements 

•	 Productivity awareness programs

•	 Strategic planning and target setting

•	 Performance monitoring and evaluation

•	 Improved work culture index from 
1.61 in 2015 to 1.84 in 2016. 

•	 Revenue per employee remains 
low, however various performance 
monitoring measures are being 
implemented to improve revenue.

•	 Continued staff engagement 
campaigns.

•	 Automation of key business 
processes 

Regulator- POTRAZ •	 Settlement of obligations

•	 Quality of service and pricing issues

•	 Technical approval of projects

•	 Quarterly performance returns

•	 Consultative workshops

•	 Payment plans for obligations

•	 Quality of service legislation

•	 Infrastructure sharing framework

•	 Spectrum allocation

•	 Telecoms market performance 
reports

•	 Pricing guidelines

•	 Offset arrangement sought against 
Government debt and services taken 
up.

•	 Continued regular engagements with 
Regulator

Pension Fund •	 Restructuring of the Pension Fund

•	 Debt settlement meetings

•	 Proposals submitted to Pension 
Fund.

•	 Conversion of Pension Fund from 
a Defined Benefit to Defined 
Contribution scheme.

•	 Debt restructuring proposals 
presented and are being 
considered.

•	 Continued engagement underway.

Financiers/ Bankers •	 Formal meetings •	 Settlement of loan obligations.

•	 Clearing of transaction gridlocks

•	 Limited foreign payments due to 
NOSTRO funding challenges.

•	 Further funding proposals explored

•	 Daily engagements to clear 
numerous online transactions

•	 Regular consultations as well as 
appeals to Central Bank.

OUR PROGRESSIVE SUSTAINABILITY TARGETS

We have set the following progressive sustainability targets for ourselves for 2017 going forwards.

•	 To plough back 0.5% of our revenues to our communities for sustainable environment management practises targeting zero 
littering in cities and towns where we operate.

•	 Reforestation- planting 100,000 trees over the next 4 years.

•	 Recycling paper and electronic waste- harmful chemicals from exchange equipment, auction, recycle, EMA engagement, 
breaking down components and dispose

•	 Human resources

o	 Targeting zero injuries at the work place

o	 Improving our work culture index from 1.84 to 3 out of 5.
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Responsibility to Our Shareholder
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	 Responsibility to our Economy



36 Tel-One (Private) Limited sustainability report for the year ended 31 December 2016

Empowerment and Employment Creation •	 619 local companies supported through $30million worth of business under a  
deliberate strategy to procure specific goods and services from local firms. This 
has further translated to supporting thousands of downstream jobs.

•	 3,649 casual jobs created for youths, men and women in communities where 
TelOne implemented projects.

•	 200 jobs created for youths to run TelOne Public wi-fi sites as ambassadors

•	 2,000 vendors employed to resell TelOne Public wi-fi.

Tax Contribution •	 $110million generated in taxes since 2013.

•	 98% business given to tax compliant vendors.

Compliance •	 100% compliance with the Procurement Act and regulations achieved in 2016.

Supporting Economic Development 
through Connectivity

•	 12.4 Gbps capacity of international bandwidth delivered.

•	 $2.8m International Interconnection revenue generated in 2016

Responsibility to our Economy (Continued)
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Responsibility to our Community
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Responsibility to our Community (Continued)

	 Add-A-Brick: University education being key to the country’s development forms part of the focus areas for both TelOne’s 
business and social investments under the Education thematic area. The company is thus supporting infrastructure 
development in Tertiary Institutions including Bindura University Library project, Harare Institute of Technology Innovations 
Lab resuscitation project and Africa University Library project. 

	 Provide-A-Meal: This has been implemented as the charitable programme under the Social Welfare thematic area. Mudzi 
District received a total of 20 tonnes of grain in 2016.

	 Mentor-A-Student: TelOne works with organized groups of students with a specific focus on the vulnerable groups through 
opening our doors for job shadowing and mentorship of students by management and staff. A total of 50 girls benefited from 
this programme in 2016.

 	 Impact to our Community

INITIATIVE PERFORMANCE IMPACT

Environment Initiative
Provide-A-Bin

•  1,000 bins donated to 5 Cities

•  Cost of $50,000

•  Over 1million pedestrians impacted daily.

•  Over 30% of EMA requirements met through     
TelOne donation for each benefiting City/Town.

Education Initiatives
Add-A-Brick

•  $100,000 towards university library construction.

•  $5,000 towards university innovations laboratory 
equipment.

•  7,500 students benefitting from the library 
annually.

•  An average of 1,000 users from the community 
accessing the library every month.

• 5,000 students benefiting from the lab annually. 

Connected Schools •  15 schools given free internet connectivity • 15,000 school children, 1,000 teachers 
benefiting directly.

Mentor-A-Student and
Internship Programmes

•  50 girls taken through job shadowing and 
mentorship by female managers

•  Supported development of education through 
internship opportunities.

•  50 girls benefited from the program. 

•  134 tertiary students benefited at a total Cost of 
$312,000 for the year 2016

Social Welfare Initiative
Provide-A-Meal

•  20 tonnes of maize sourced and donated to 
Mudzi District to families affected by the El Nino 
induced drought.

•  200 families benefited.

	 The Future
	 TelOne intends to build long lasting relationships with communities in general through acting responsibly, respecting both the 

communities and the environment. In other words, TelOne shall continue to plough back part of its profit to the communities 
it serves. This thrust will see the company in the new financial year establishing a fully-fledged TelOne Foundation as a unit to 
strengthen and systematically manage the company’s social investments.  Through this vehicle, it shall seek partnerships and 
raise resources to enhance its capacity to invest in the community. 

	 We are targeting to invest 0.5% of our revenues towards social investment programmes. In addition, we are working to plant 
100,000 trees over the next 4 years to reverse impact of our operations on the environment.
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	 Responsibility  to our Customers

	 We are driven to provide affordable and reliable services to our customers at all times. Initiatives to ensure convenience 
and reduced customer effort to access our services continue to be implemented and the business is expected to be 
anchored on customer convenience into the future.

We continuously orient our staff to improve on customer focus in executing their duties. An Annual Customer Service Month 
was declared to provide a rallying point for all year round client appreciation messages and customer oriented culture 
among staff, to provide a feedback platform for customers and to create a serving culture in the management teams.

Product Performance •	 160,000 TelOne Public Wi-Fi users monthly.

•	 200 new Public Wi-Fi sites countrywide.

•	 23,591 new broadband customers. 

•	 23,687 new voice customers. 

•	 119 new satellite customers. 

Customer Satisfaction •	 Customer Service Charter launched

•	 10% improvement in the satisfaction index rating 

Convenience

•	 222,658 online transactions through TelOne in-house payment platform TelPay 

and merchant platforms for the year. 

•	 17 banks, 10 chain stores and mobile money operators signed on as agencies 

for TelOne transactions.

•	 4 mobile shops acquired.

	 We are driven to provide the best service and experience at the least price. Initiatives to ensure convenience and reduced 
customer effort to access our products and services have been implemented and the business is expected to be anchored 
on these into the future.

	 Our Contact Centre has been enhanced both in skills and head count and a special unit for corporate enquiries and queries 
has been established. This segmentation has helped in refining our support service to all our customers. 

	 We are targeting deployement of Wi-fi hotspots country-wide. All 154 of existing exchanges shall be converted to fully 
fledged client service centres by 2019. We are targeting a customer satisfication index of 90% by 2019.
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	 TelOne Customer Service
	 The company adopted a new culture that puts the customer at the centre of everything that TelOne does. Being a key 

value for the company, Client Focus has become a philosophy across the business and all team members. A new Client 
Service Charter was launched during the year as TelOne’s promise to adhere to the service standards that meet customer 
expectations. Specifically we undertake to:

•	 Bring convenience and reduced effort in accessing our products and services.

•	 Bring standardised experience at all touch-points.

•	 Be prompt and timely in the provision of our products and services

	 Our internal customer satisfaction index rating score was at 60%. Service quality attributes considered included: Product 
functionality, Fault turnaround time, general service quality, shop physical evidence, staff friendliness and staff product 
knowledge. 

	 In a quest to promote customer convenience and reduce turnaround times, we have upgraded our call centre, increased its 
head count and are now offering 24/7 support services on Toll-Free 950 or 04 700 950 from mobile networks. We have also 
unified our touch points to allow more options for clients to launch complaints through social media, Facebook (TelOneZW), 
Twitter (@TelOneZW), email (clientservices@telone.co.zw), website live chat (www.telone.co.zw) and on WhatsApp number 
+263 718 700 950. 

	

	 Our Customer Experience Drivers

•	 Product Reliability. We have installed new equipment to enable 
improvement and stability of broadband lines seeing a 7% decline in 
broadband faults. Customer educational campaigns have enhanced 
product knowledge. A network uptime of 99.68% was achieved.

•	 Service Quality. A Customer Service Charter, which clearly defines 
the service quality parameters or other experience requirements 
was launched as a guiding framework for all our operations. Training 
of all staff and touch points on customer experience as well as 
establishment of service quality circles from management to the 
shop-floor has also helped to improve service quality.

•	 Customer Communication. Consistent and timeous feedback with 
customers is a key priority for the business, which has helped increase 
customer satisfaction by 10%. Work to entrench this within the business 
practice is continuous. A total of 8 customer feedback activities were 
conducted across the country. 

•	 Convenience through E-Commerce. TelOne continues to leverage 
on technology to enhance customer experience. We made it easier 
for clients to acquire our services by simplifying the service application 
process while the online experience was also improved through 
adding new features to the online service portal and website which we 
launched in August 2016. Clients are now able to apply for service online 
reducing the turnaround times for service delivery. Payment platforms 
also increased customer convenience with 222,658 online transactions 
worth $3.5million through TelOne in-house payment platform TelPay and 
other merchant platforms.  

•	 TelPay is an online transaction processing platform selling ADSL, FTTH, WiFi 
vouchers and ZESA tokens that was developed in-house. The platform is integrated with CBZ VISA, Ecocash and Telecash 
thereby providing unprecedented customer convenience.

•	 Branch opening hours were adjusted to suit customer needs while partnerships with agencies, banks and chain stores were 
put in place to increase access and enhance convenience. 

•	 Self-Service Portal - The Self-service portal was developed with capabilities for automation of recharge processes, launching 
of prepaid voice and broadband services and vouchers, customer usage history, usage notifications, balance enquiry, pin 
less and pin based recharge, Ecocash, Telecash, CBZ Master Card and VISA. These capabilities helped improve customer 
experience, convenience, trust and satisfaction. 

Responsibility to our Customers (Continued)
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	 Safety

	 Occupational Injuries 

ACCIDENT STATISTICS ANALYSIS

Year Minor Injuries LTI Lost Days

2015 5 11 231

2016 8 10 134

	

	 LTI-Lost Time Injury 

• 	 Programs have been put in place to quickly identify hazards that come with tasks performed routinely and this has 		
	 contributed to the 42% reduction in time lost through injuries.

• 	 An accident investigation process is in place as part of our strategies aimed at reducing the rate of accidents. 

Responsibility to our Employees

At TelOne we value the people who make service delivery possible – our employees. We have asserted a culture change  
programme that ensures progress for both the business and our employees. Staff wellness and the well-being of their 
families has been made part of the business. A culture of continuous learning, adaptability to change, agility to customer 
needs, ownership of the business and positivity is encouraged.

We are committed to improving our work culture index from 1,84 to 3 out 5 over the next 3 years. We are targeting zero 
injuries at the workplace by 2020.
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Responsibility to our Employees (Continued)
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Responsibility to our Employees (Continued)
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Number of employees trained on technical skills per quarter

Number of employees trained on soft and commercial skills per quarter

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

Responsibility to our Employees (Continued)
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Our Performance Summary 
As a Sustainable and Responsible Business

	 The table below demonstrates our performance against the pillars of a sustainable and responsible business. These metrics 
demonstrate the impact of our various business sustainability initiatives.	

	

Performance pillar Performance target 2016 performance 2015 performance

Our customers Increase customer satisfaction and achieve a 
customer satisfaction index of 90%

60% Not measured

Attend to new service installations within an 
average of 24 hours

19 hours 22 hours 

Attend to client service faults within an 
average of 24 hours

15 hours 17.5 hours

Increase service reliability and archive a 
network uptime of 99.99%

99.68% 99.62%

Our environment 50% of employees to participate in cleaning 
the environment we operate

50% New program

Distribute 2,000 bins per annum to a total of 
12 towns and cities, to improve sanitation and 
hygiene for 5million Zimbabweans per annum

1,000 bins donated to 5 
cities at a cost of 

$50,000

New program

Our communities Improve the livelihoods of rural communities 
by “providing a meal” to at least 600 families 
in areas affected by drought

200 families were 
provided with meals

New program

Increase the number of rural broadband 
connections to schools and clinics

1,352 connections 1,251 connections 

Community employment opportunities 
created through projects

6,500 2,400

Number of university students recruited for 
work related learning

134 115 (2014: 16)

Value of downstream business created $14million $17million

Contribute in the development of educational 
facilities by investing at least $50,000 
per annum in aiding the development of 
infrastructure at educational institutions in the 
country.

$100,000 New program

Our employees Achieve 5 training days per year 4.2 New target

Rate of staff turnover 3% 3%

Eliminate time lost through injuries at the 
work place (LTI days)

10 days 11 days

Improve a work culture index score to  3 out 
of 5

1.84 1.61

	 Our incremental sustainability targets for 2017

•	 Our business’ operations contribute to carbon emissions whose quantity and impact have not been established. We have 
however made plans to contribute towards reversing the impact of our carbon footprint to the environment by investing in 
re-forestation initiatives starting in 2017. 

•	 We have planned for investments to facilitate our increased reliance on green energy solutions in our business operations.  
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2016 TelOne Centre for Learning Graduation

The Mainway Meadows FTTH tour by Minister of ICT, 
Postal and Courier services

TelOne Managing Director Mrs Chipo Mtasa and the 
late N.U.S.T  Vice Chancellor Professor L. Ndlovu at a 
collaboration MOU signing ceremony

Members of the Parliamentary Portfolio Committee during a 
tour of TelOne projects

Vice President Honourable E. Mnangagwa, flanked by Minister 
of ICT, Postal and Courier Services and other Stakeholders at 
TelOne Centre for Learning at the launch of our Bachelor of 
Telecommunications Engineering Degree programme

Customers accessing service at a TelOne mobile shop in 
Mainway Meadows.

Our Year In Pictures
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TelOne donated US$100,000 to Bindura University of 
Science and Technology as part of the Add-A-Brick CSI 
programme

Invited guests experiencing the revitalized TelOne Website 
and Mobile App during the launch in Harare

TelOne staff participating in a clean up and bin donation in 
Bulawayo 

TelOne Harare Region Netball team scooped the first prize 
at the 2016 Inter regional MD’s sports Gala

End of year TelOne staff awards

TelOne technical team rolling out fibre

Our Year In Pictures (Continued)  
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Recognitions & Awards In 2016

Zimbabwe National Chamber of Commerce

	 •  Best Public Sector Company 2016 

Zimbabwe Institute of Management

	 •  1st Runner up in Customer Service Excellence

	 •  2nd Runner up Human Resources Development

2016 Public Sector Financial Management 
Awards

	 •  Overall Best Financial Management

	 •  Financial Turnaround of the Year

	 •  1st Runner Up Innovative Resource Management

	 •  1st Runner Up in Budgeting and Financial 

Zimbabwe Mega Project Management

	 • Best Corporate Governance Company of the year

	 • 1st runner up Telecom Category

Marketers Association of Zimbabwe 
Superbrands Awards 2016

	 •  1st Runner Up Data and Telecoms Category

Harare Metropolitan Province Social 
Responsibility Awards

	 •  1st Runner Up Environment Category

4th Excellence in Governance Awards 2016

	 •  2nd Runner Up State Enterprises and Parastatals

ZITF 2016 

	 • Best Exhibit ICT Category

Harare Agricultural Show 2016

	 • Best ICT Exhibit (Potraz Award)
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ENTERPRISE-WIDE RISK MANAGEMENT 
The business is affected by a number of risks and uncertainties emanating from both internal and external factors hence the 
need for an ongoing Enterprise Risk Management function. 

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The key risks and uncertainties that affect the business have an impact on strategies, business, revenues, brand, profits, liquidity 
and ultimately the shareholder value. Key risks described in the previous reporting year have evolved and so did our business 
risk management responses. The Enterprise Risk Management framework in place, which is depicted below, gives reasonable 
assurance that we continue to identify and address our business risks. 

TELONE’S ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Figure 1: TelOne’s enterprise risk management framework 

The business adopted enterprise risk management as its risk management approach in 2015 to allow effective integration of 
risk management into all processes. This approach entails that all levels of management have a responsibility for risk man-
agement, while the established risk function provides a mechanism for monitoring risks and the implementation of mitigating 
actions and reporting on identified risks and business impact there-of.

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT ACHIEVEMENTS AND PRIORITIES

Enterprise risk management achievements in 2016 

In the period under review TelOne addressed the integration of Enterprise Risk Management in the business through the 
following initiatives:

•	 Improved focus on project risk management, in particular, sufficient risk management focus was given over the National 
Broadband Project, implementation of which commenced during the year.

•	 Integration of additional management layers in the risk management process 

•	 Enhanced our level of corporate compliance by internal compliance reviews monitoring major risks.

•	 Development of a Business Continuity Management Framework (BCM) and Disaster Recovery Plan (DRP) 

Enterprise risk management priorities for 2017

Information security risk governance will be given more prominence in risk assessments and risk mitigation plans. Strategies are 
in place to develop further skills in the information security domain. This area remains critical due to the evolution of our network 
and systems from an outdated legacy network into a modern IP based network. 

Implementation of the Business Continuity Management Framework (BCM) and Disaster Recovery Plan (DRP) will be given 
priority in order to ensure the business is ready to respond to disruptions.

Fraud risk management will be enhanced by training staff on ethics and effective reporting of fraud through the fraud hotline 
in place through Tip-Offs Anonymous, which is administered independently by Deloitte. A new code of conduct was launched 
in 2016 and the new code has set high standards of ethical conduct for all staff, this new code of conduct will be critical in the 
management of internal fraud risk.
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MAJOR RISKS

Strategic Risk

The telecommunications market has been characterized by:
• 	 Rapid and constant change
•  	 Strong competition with more choice to consumers
• 	 Market and product convergence
• 	 Technology changes
• 	 Declining sectorial revenues with consumers prefering cheaper VOIP service therefore resulting in a decline in            	

	traditional voice revenues.

Strategic risks which the business is aware of and is actively managing relate to the adverse impact on earnings due to changes 
in the economic and operating environment in line with the evolving customer preferences. 

Impact What changed in 2016? Risk Mitigation
This risk can result in our inability 
to grow revenue and profitably. 
This may result in strained cash 
flows limiting the business’ ability to 
reinvest and grow. This risk has also 
presented an opportunity for growth 
in the business’ broadband market.

Restructuring the organization in 
order to be more customer centric

Increased deployment of our fibre 
network

Modernization of the business 
network through IP transition and 
service convergence.

Increased customer engagements to allow 
the business to identify areas of need to its 
customer. Engagements were done with 
over 10,000 customers located in various 
parts of the country in 2016.

Striving to deliver superior customer 
service. To support this initiative, our 
call centre has been transformed into 
a customer experience centre and with 
the increased company-wide focus on 
delivering exceptional customer service, a 
net promoter score index of 3.8% has been 
achieved in 2016. 

Realigning our cost structure through 
various cost containment initiatives. This 
initiative has resulted in a 10.5% decline in 
our operating costs between 2015 and 2016.

Compliance Risk
The risk of material financial loss, penalties or loss of reputation the business may suffer as a result of failure to comply with laws, 
regulations and contractual obligations. 

Compliance risk rating of the business is considered high mainly due to liquidity and solvency issues which affect the company’s 
balance sheet. 

Legacy loans

The business is exposed to unsettled contractual obligations emanating from legacy loans amounting to $364 million as at 
31 December 2016 dating back to the period of the unbundling of the Postal and Tele-Communications (PTC). Constraints in 
financial resources continue to affect the business ability to settle the legacy loans. The legacy loans have contributed $18million 
in finance costs recorded by the business in 2016 therefore affecting overall profitability. 

Pension fund

The business owes $23million to its defined benefit pension fund as at 31 December 2016. The company was exposed to 
sanctions due to this unsettled obligation. To mitigate this risk, the company has engaged the Pension Fund to restructure this 
obligation into an interest bearing loan, with a 10 year tenor.
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The pension fund has an actuarial deficit of $65.1million as at 31 December 2015. The company’s portion of this actuarial deficit 
has not been determined. Full disclosure of this deficit has been made in the audited financial statements in note 23.  

The company’s financial position and credit rating may be further affected by recognition of this deficit.

Impact What changed in 2016? Risk Mitigation

Non-compliance with various regula-
tory and contractual obligations may 
affect the business’ credit rating and 
may lead to penalties.

POTRAZ regulatory activity has 
increased in the past year in different 
aspects including the introduction of 
service quality standards which the 
business has surpassed in 2016.

Conversion of the pension fund into a 
defined contribution.

Regular compliance reviews are carried out 
by our internal Legal and Compliance, and 
Audit & Risk departments.  Findings are 
monitored and reported to the Board.

Increased stakeholders and regulator 
engagement

Financial Risk
The risks attributed to liquidity and solvency risks, credit risks and foreign exchange risk. Rating of the business financial risk 
landscape is considered high as a result of the following:

Liquidity risk- settlement of creditors balances

Liquidity risk for TelOne mainly relates to the company’s ability to timely service its obligations to local and international creditors 
and various lenders. 

Impact What changed in 2016? Risk Mitigation
Delayed settlement of creditors may 
affect the business’ operations.

We increased our focus on managing 
our receivables so as to improve 
liquidity and our capacity to settle 
obligations.

Cost containment strategies have 
been implemented to improve 
the company’s liquidity position. 
Operating expenses have reduced 
from $102million in 2015 to 
$85million in 2016.

Continuous engagement of the Central Bank 
for nostro funding support to settle foreign 
creditors.

Engagement of the Government of 
Zimbabwe to settle balances due to the 
business to allow the business to service its 
creditors.

Credit Risk

Credit risk for TelOne mainly relates to the company’s ability to timely recover its debtors book which has a net value of  
$145.5million as at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: $145.7 million).

Impact What changed in 2016? Risk Mitigation

Delayed recovery of the company’s 
debtor’s book may result in cashflow 
constraints which may affect the 
business’ ability to service its 
obligations on time.

Increased our focus on managing our 
receivables. 

Restructured organization into 
divisions with greater responsibility 
over managing its receivables. This 
approach has decentralized the 
management of the debtors’ book, 
thereby replacing our previously 
centralized approach. It is our view 
that this approach will give more 
efficiency in managing our credit risk. 

An integrated debtor’s management strategy 
has been developed and implemented 
in line with the organizational restructure 
carried out in 2016. 

Introduction of prepaid billing to reduce 
accumulation of debtors book to be 
implemented as part of the National 
Broadband project.

Engagement of debt collectors and credit 
bureaus to intensify collections and where 
appropriate legal action is being taken.
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Technological Risk
The telecommunications industry continues to experience constant technological changes to support changes in customer 
preferences, vast modernized infrastructure requirements and short turnaround time for identifying and reacting to technological 
threats and opportunities. The modernization of our network also inherently introduces information security risks which are 
being continuously monitored.

Impact What changed in 2016? Risk Mitigation

Delayed reaction to changing cus-
tomer preferences may result in a 
loss of revenue and market share.

Skills base may become irrelevant 
to the changing environment and 
technology.

National Broadband Project (NBB) 
Implementation commenced 
resulting in the modernization of 
our network elements.

Undertook re-training of our critical 
staff members to allow them to 
remain relevant to the changing 
technology

We improved on our reliance 
of efficiency work tools such 
as workflow systems for our 
administrative functions

Implementation of network modernization 
under the NBB Project commenced in 2016. 
The project will result in improved and 
converged service features and reliability to 
support customer needs.

Re-training and practical exposure in the 
management of modern IP networks and cyber 
security by our different partners.

Prominence given to project management 
related risks. 

Operational risk
Operational risk exposure may result from failure of people, processes or systems that may potentially disrupt the business 
operation. Risk sources for operational risks include: Information and Cyber security issues, Fraud risk- internal and external 
fraud risks, Safety, Health and Environment risks as well as Processes and systems.

Impact What changed in 2016? Risk mitigation

Disruption of the business’ 
operations.

Completed an enterprise-wide 
review and update of policies and 
procedures which is now a continu-
ous process. 

Carried out an external review of 
our information security processes 
and controls.

Formed a Committee to oversee 
the management of Safety, Health 
and Environment issues.

Implemented a new Code of 
Conduct.

Safety, Health and Environment (SHE) 
committee and regional committees to track 
SHE issues.

Asset and staff protection through asset 
tracking, education, provision of appropriate  
processes and working tools.

Whistle blowing program in place to support 
the reporting of fraud and ethical breaches. 
This facility is managed independently by 
Deloitte’s under Tip-Offs Anonymous.

Ongoing education and awareness campaigns 
on fraud, theft and vandalism of infrastructure.

BCM and DRP Framework has been developed 
and is being implemented.
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Reputational risk
This is a threat or danger to the good name or standing of an entity. Managing this risk is largely about managing and delivering 
stakeholder expectations. Our customers are the most critical stakeholder in this regard.

Impact What changed in 2016? Risk mitigation

Reputational damage may result 
in loss of stakeholder confidence 
which is key in securing our 
revenue and capital markets.

Implemented stakeholder 
engagements which included 
setting up feedback sessions with 
our clients and other stakeholders 
in various parts of the country.

Stakeholder engagements are carried out as 
part of our strategic planning process to allow 
us to understand stakeholder expectations.

We conduct regular research to obtain 
feedback from our stakeholders for guidance. 



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



ACCOUNTING RECORDS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Board of Directors is responsible for the maintenance of adequate accounting records; preparation of financial 
statements and related information contained in the Annual Report ensuring that they fairly present the state of affairs and 
results of TelOne’s operations.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ ROLE
The External Auditors are responsible for carrying out an independent examination of financial statements in accordance 
with International Standards on Auditing and reporting on findings.

SYSTEMS OF INTERNAL CONTROL
TelOne’s systems of internal financial control give reasonable but not absolute assurance to reliability of financial 
statements, safeguard, verify maintain accountability of assets, prevent and detect misstatements and losses.

GOING CONCERN
Review of TelOne’s budgets and financial projections have given directors no reason in all material aspects to believe
that the company will not continue to operate in the foreseeable future as the financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
Relevant International Financial Reporting Standards have been applied. Policies and procedures are being continually
reviewed in line with the Transformational Strategy the company is pursuing in order to guide operations as the organisations 
transforms from a Fixed to a FMC company.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 as set out under pages 60 to 79 fairly present in all
material respects the financial position and performance of TelOne (Pvt) Ltd and have been approved by the Board 
of Directors and are signed on its behalf by: 

C. MAUNGANIDZE	 C. MTASA	 ENG C.S SHAMU
(Acting Director Finance ACIS RPAcc) 	 (Managing Director)	 (Board Chairman)	
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

TO

THE MINISTER OF INFORMATION COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY, 
POSTAL AND COURIER SERVICES

AND

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 

TELONE (PRIVATE) LIMITED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

I have audited the financial statements of TelOne (Private) Limited set out on pages 60 to 79, which comprise the statement 
of financial position as at December 31, 2016, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement 
of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of TelOne 
(Private) Limited as at December 31, 2016, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

 
Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA) and International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions (ISSAI). My responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my report. I am independent of TelOne (Private) Limited in accordance with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements in Zimbabwe, and I have fulfilled my other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.



Material uncertainty related to going concern

Without qualifying my opinion, I draw attention to note 26 in the financial statements which shows that the Company had 
a net liability position of US$111,194,861 (2015: US$98,961,201) as at December 31, 2016. Fixed-term borrowings, mainly 
legacy loans, approached maturity without realistic prospects of renewal or repayment. These conditions indicate the 
existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going 

concern.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most significance in my audit of the financial 
statements of TelOne for the year ended December 31, 2016. These matters were addressed in the context of my audit of 
the TelOne financial statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon, and I do not provide a separate opinion on 
these matters. In addition to the matter described in the ‘Material uncertainty related to going concern section’, 

I have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in my report. 

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in the audit

Valuation of property, plant and equipment. Refer to 
notes 3.1 and 4 of the financial statements. 

Reassessment of useful lives and determination of 
depreciation rates requires significant management 
judgement. The carrying amount and depreciation rates 
are reviewed annually by management with reference to 
current and forecast technical factors, therefore valuation 
of property, plant and equipment was considered a key 
audit matter.

The carrying amount of the Company’s property, plant and 
equipment as at December 31, 2016 was $306,784,610 
after recognising a gain on revaluation of $12,677,314 and 
depreciation amounting to $ 22,872,765 during the year. 

My  procedures in relation to management ‘s 
assessment of the valuation of property, plant and 
equipment included:

•    Evaluating management’s estimates regarding 
useful lives and residual values of assets in relation 
to the Company’s historical experience and industry 
practice.

•    Discussions with management and inspection of 
documentary evidence of the state of the assets.

•    Assessing the methodology used by management 
to estimate the useful life of the assets taking into 
account the Company’s future plans.

•    Evaluating the capabilities and the competencies of 
the management technical team. 

Based on the evidence gathered, I found 
management’s assumptions in relation to useful 
life and carrying amount reasonable. The related 
disclosures are considered to be appropriate

Valuation of trade receivables. Refer to notes 3.7, 9 and 
25.1 of the financial statements.

 

The valuation of trade receivables is dependent on certain 
key assumptions that require significant management 
judgement. As a result, the valuation of receivables was 
significant to my audit.

Management has estimated the recoverable amount of 
the trade receivables to be $139,407,402 as at December 
31,2016 after recognising an allowance for credit losses of 
$66,669,335.

My audit procedures to address the risk of material 
misstatement relating to the valuation of trade 
receivables included:

•	 Assessment of the recoverability of long outstanding 
receivables by making comparison of the rate of 
collection in the current year and prior year. 

•	 Analysis of the debtors age analysis for long 
outstanding amounts and assessment of the 
reasonability of provisions for irrecoverable 
amounts. 

•	 Evaluated the reasonability of management 
judgements and assumptions made in estimating 
the allowance for credit losses considering the 
nature and suitability of any historic data used to 
support these assumptions.

I found the key assumptions used in the valuation of 
trade receivables to be appropriate.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
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Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in the audit

Revenue recognition. Refer to notes 3.9 and 17 of the 
financial statements.

The Company has various products that cut across internet, 
voice and data from which it generates revenue using a 
complex IT based billing system.  The huge volume of 
transactions from numerous revenue streams results in 
revenue recognition being a complex area. The level of 
complexity and the presumed risk in revenue recognition 
were considered to be of most significance to the audit. 

The Company recognised revenue amounting to $114,042,935 
during the year ended December 31, 2016.

The audit procedures to address the risk of material 
misstatement relating to revenue recognition included: 

•	 Testing of controls over the Company’s information 
technology revenue system assisted by my 
information technology specialist. 

•	 Conducting substantive analytical procedures on 
revenue.

•	 Scrutinising manual journals related to revenue 
to assess the timing and fair values of revenue 
recorded. 

•	 Evaluated the adequacy of the disclosures 
regarding revenue.

Based on the transactions tested, I found no material 
errors in the computation and recognition of revenue. 
The relevant disclosures are considered to be 
appropriate.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other Information comprises all the information in the TelOne 
(Private) Limited 2016 annual report and does not include the financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cater for the Other Information and I do not express any form of assurance 
or conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the Company’s financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge 
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work I have performed on the other information that I obtained prior to the date of this report, I conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to report in 
this regard.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and in a manner required by the Companies Act [Chapter 24:22] and 
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibility for the Audit of the financial statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISA will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, I exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout 
the audit. I also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control;

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal 
control;

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the directors;

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required 
to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern;

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether 
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit.

I also provide those charged with governance with a statement that I have complied with the relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on my independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, I determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. I describe 
these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, I determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In my opinion, the financial statements have, in all material respects, been properly prepared in compliance with the 
disclosure requirements of the Companies Act [Chapter 24:22], the Public Finance Management Act [Chapter 22:19] and 
relevant Statutory Instruments

02 June 2017 			                   		  _______________________

							                         M. CHIRI,

							               AUDITOR – GENERAL 

                   

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
(Continued)
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
For the year ended 31 December 2016

		  	  31 Dec 2016	  31 Dec 2015
		  Notes	  USD 	  USD 

ASSETS			 
			 
Non current assets			 
Property, plant and equipment	 4	  306,784,610 	  292,114,969 
Investment property	 5	  1,034,030 	  1,052,000 
Intangible assets	 6	  20,628,327 	  23,557,460 
Financial assets	 7	  1,048,835 	  795,696 
			    329,495,802 	  317,520,125 
Current assets			 
Inventory	 8	  8,430,797 	  10,063,022 
Taxation	 14.3	  2,694,089 	  448,594 
Trade and other receivables	 9	  145,537,738 	  145,741,594 
Cash and cash equivalents	 10	  3,585,761 	  4,526,983 
			    160,248,385 	  160,780,193 
TOTAL ASSETS		   489,744,187 	  478,300,318 
			 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 			 
Capital and reserves			 
Share capital	 11	  32 	  32 
Non-distributable reserves		   (9,345,589)	  (21,840,273)
Mark to market reserve		   342,482 	  145,945 
Retained loss		   (102,191,786)	  (77,266,905)
			    (111,194,861)	  (98,961,201)
Non-current liabilities 			 
Interest bearing debt:foreign legacy loans	 12	  40,351,447 	  47,834,103 
Long term trade payable	 15.2	  17,365,361 	  -   
Deferred tax liability	 14.2	  63,139,834 	  69,895,542 
Deferred income		   741,169 	  1,058,592 
			    121,597,811 	  118,788,237 
			 
Current liabilities			 
Trade and other payables	 15	  127,924,769 	  128,769,661 
Loan interest payable:legacy loans	 15.1	  190,492,220 	  172,005,427 
Current portion Interest bearing debt:foreign legacy loans	 12	  133,332,007 	  127,922,776 
Current portion Interest bearing debt:local loans	 13	  25,228,717 	  27,975,828 
Provisions	 16	  2,363,524 	  1,799,590 
			    479,341,237 	  458,473,282 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES		   489,744,187 	  478,300,318 
		            	           
			 
		
 

C. MAUNGANIDZE	 C. MTASA	 ENG C.S SHAMU
(Acting Director Finance ACIS RPAcc) 	 (Managing Director)	 (Board Chairman)	

02 June  2017			   	
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
For the year ended 31 December 2016

			    31 Dec 2016	  31 Dec 2015
		  Notes	  USD 	  USD 
			 

Revenue	 17	  114,042,935 	  137,670,239 
Payment to other operators	 18	  (20,969,400)	  (27,277,486)
Net operating revenue		   93,073,535 	  110,392,753 

Other income	 19	  5,425,198 	  10,618,133 
Finance income	 21	  319,901 	  260,627 

Operating expenses		   (84,920,435)	  (102,492,205)
Other operating expenses	 20	  (43,091,658)	  (55,968,595)
Staff costs	 20.1	  (41,828,777)	  (46,523,610)
Earnings before interest tax and depreciation 		   13,898,199 	  18,779,308 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment	 4	  (22,872,765)	  (8,689,116)
Depreciation of investment property	 5	  (17,969)	  (11,093)
Amortisation of intangibles	 6	  (2,634,830)	  (1,850,621)
Operating/ (loss) profit		   (11,627,365)	  8,228,478 

Finance cost on legacy loans	 21	  (17,838,856)	  (8,429,575)
Finance cost on current loans	 21	  (1,807,460)	  (1,970,585)
Net exchange (losses)/gains on legacy loans	 22	  (1,435,228)	  12,092,786 
(Loss)/Profit before tax		   (32,708,909)	  9,921,104 

Tax expense	 14.1	  7,784,027 	  (4,108,685)
(Loss)/Profit for the year		   (24,924,882)	  5,812,419 
			 

STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2016

			 
	

	 31 Dec 2016	  31 Dec 2015 	
	 USD	  USD 	
 	 	

(Loss)/profit for the year	              (24,924,882)	 5,812,419 
	  		
Other comprehensive income	  
Fair value re-measurement gain	 7                 	 196,538	 (145,944)
Revaluation surplus	                  12,494,683	 58,804,034
Total other comprehensive income	 12,691,221	 58,658,090 	

	

Total comprehensive income for the year	            (12,233,661)	  64,470,509 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2016

		
		   Share 	  	 Non 	 Mark to  	 Retained 	 Total
		  capital		  distributable	 market	 loss	   reserves
				    reserve 	 reserve 	
	  	 USD 		   USD 	  USD 	  USD 	  USD 	

					   

Balance at January 1, 2015	  32 	   	 (80,644,306)	  291,888 	  (83,079,324)	  (163,431,710)

Profit for the year	  -   	    	  -   	  -   	  5,812,419 	  5,812,419 
						    
Revaluation Surplus Property, Plant and Equipment 	  -   		   58,501,434 	  -   	  -   	 58,501,433
Revaluation Surplus Investment Property	  -   		   302,600 	  -   	  -   	  302,600 
							     
Fair value remeasurement loss	  -   		   -   	  (145,943)	  -   	  (145,943)
Balance at December 31, 2015	 32 		   (21,840,272)	  145,945 	  (77,266,904)	  (98,961,200)

Balance at January 1, 2016	  32 		   (21,840,272)	 145,945 	  (77,266,904)	  (98,961,200)
						    
Loss for the year	 -	   	  -   	  -   	  (24,924,882)	  (24,924,882)
						    
Revaluation surplus	 -		   12,494,683 	 -	  -   	  12,494,683 
						    
Fair value remeasurement gain	  -   		   -   	 196,537 	  -   	  196,538 
Balance at  December 31, 2016	  32 		   (9,345,589)	  342,482 	  (102,191,786)	  (111,194,861)
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2016

		  	 31 Dec 2016	 31 Dec 2015
		  Notes	 USD	 USD
			 

Cash flows from operating activities			 
			 
Operating (loss)profit		   (11,627,365)	  8,228,478 
			 
Adjustments for:			 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment	 4	  22,872,765 	  8,689,116 
Depreciation of investment property	 5	  17,969 	  11,093 
Amortisation of intangible assets	 6	  2,634,830 	  2,748,453 
Deferred Income		   (317,423)	  (327,619)
Payable Write Off		   -   	  (5,875,590)
Debt Write Off		   -   	  4,571,252 
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment		   (61,964)	  (124,105)
Unrealized exchange (gains)/losses	 22	  408,242 	  (2,232,178)
Finance income		   (319,901)	  (260,627)
		   	 13,607,153 	  15,428,273 
			 
(Increase)/decrease in inventories		   1,632,226 	  900,364 
(Increase)/decrease in receivables		   203,856 	  10,699,997 
Increase (decrease) in payables		   18,205,834 	  (1,379,966)
Cash generated from operations		   33,649,069 	  25,648,668 
			 
			 
Interest received		   133,577 	  260,627 
Interest paid		   (416,691)	  (657,713)
Taxation paid	 14.3	  (803,160)	  (1,668,086)
Net cash from operating activities		   32,562,795 	  23,583,496 
			    	
Cash flows from investing activities			 
			 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment	 4	  (24,917,081)	  (16,268,400)
Proceeds from disposal of equipment		   213,222 	  437,783 
Intangible asset development expenditure		   (1,561,869)	  (4,161,894)
Net cash utilised in investing activities		   (26,265,728)	  (19,992,511)
			 
Cash flows from financing activities			 
			 
Repayment of local borrowings	 13	  (4,137,879)	  (2,746,736)
Repayment of foreign borrowings		   (3,100,410)	  (3,200,004)
Net cash outflow from financing activities		   (7,238,289)	  (5,946,740)
			 
			 
Net increase /(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents		   (941,222)	  (2,355,755)
			 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year		   4,526,983 	  6,882,738 
			 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year	 10	  3,585,761 	  4,526,983
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2016

1.		  NATURE OF BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION
	
		  TeOne (Pvt) Ltd was incorporated in Zimbabwe in 2000 in terms 

of the Postal and Telecommunications Act (Chapter 12:05). The 
company is wholly owned by the Government of Zimbabwe. 
The Company is a fixed mobile convergence company whose 
main business is that of provision of telecommunication services 
and products. The company is registered at the Registrar of 
Companies under registration number 4658/2000.

	
		  The registered offices and address: Runhare House
		  107 Nkwame 
		  Nkrumah Avenue
		  P.O Box CY 331
		  Harare          

2.		  BASIS OF PREPARATION 

2.1 		  Authorization of Financial Statements
       	 The financial statements are authorized for issue by the TelOne 

Board of Directors.

2.2		 Statement of Compliance

2.2.1  	Compliance with IFRS
		  The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2016 

have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS), International Accounting Standards 
(IAS) and Interpretations (collectively IFRS), approved by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) through the 
due process.

2.2.2	 Compliance with Legal and Regulatory requirements
		  The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2016 

have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 
(Chapter 24.03).

2.3  	 Going Concern Basis
		  The financial statements have been prepared on a going 

concern basis. The company is in a net liability position. The 
directors are not aware of any other material uncertainties 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
upon the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

2.4  	 Functional and presentation currency
		  The financial statements are presented in United States Dollars 

(USD) which is both the    functional and presentation currency.

2.5  	 Consistency of presentation and accounting policies
		  The financial statements have retained the presentation and 

classification of items from one period to the next unless 
a new IFRS requires a change or it is apparent following a 
significant change in the nature of the business or a review 
of the financial statements. Accounting policies have been 
selected and applied consistently for similar transactions, other 
events and conditions unless an IFRS specifically requires or 
permits categorization of items. The policy, shall be selected 
and applied consistently to each category which different 
policies may be appropriate. If an IFRS requires or permits 
such categorization, an appropriate accounting policy shall be 
applied.

2.6 		 Basis of measurement
		  The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis 

of accounting except for cash flow information. Material classes 
of similar items are presented separately and items of dissimilar 
nature or function are presented separately unless they are 
immaterial. The financial statements of the company are 
based on the statutory records that are maintained under the 
historical cost convention, except for financial instruments and 
investment property which are measured at fair value. Historical 
cost is generally based on the fair value of consideration given.

2.7   	 Use of estimates and judgments
		  The preparation of financial statements requires management 

to make judgements, estimates and formulate assumptions 
that may affect the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. 
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and 
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
They are based on historical experience and other factors 
including expectations of future events that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances. However, uncertainty 
about these assumptions and estimates could require a material 
adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability in the 
future. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in 
the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future 
periods affected. Areas of significant judgement include useful 
lives and residual values of Property, Plant and Equipment and 
the fair valuation of account receivables. 

2.8  	 New and revised financial reporting standards
		  New standards, amendments and interpretations effective 

January 01 2016, which have been adopted and applied

i.		  IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
		  Amendments providing clarification on acceptable methods of 

depreciation and amortization. Effective date 1 January 2016.

ii.		  IAS 38 Intangible Assets
		  Amendments regarding the clarification of acceptable methods 

of depreciation and amortization. Effective date 1 January 2016

iii.		  IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued 
		  Operations. Effective date 1 January 2016
		  11

iv.		  IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
		  Additional hedge accounting disclosures and consequential 

amendments resulting from the introduction of the hedge 
accounting chapter in IFRS 9. Effective date 1 January 2016

v.		  IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
		  Amendments resulting from the disclosure initiative. 

Amendment aiming to ensure that an entity does not reduce 
the understandability of its financial statements by obscuring 
material information with immaterial information or by 
aggregating material items that have different natures or 
functions. Effective date 1 January 2016

vi.		  IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows
		  Amendments resulting from the disclosure initiative.
		  Effective date 1 January 2016

vii.		  IAS 12 Income Taxes
		  Amendments regarding the recognition of deferred tax assets 

for unrealized losses. Effective date 1 January 2016

viii.		 IAS 19 Employee Benefits
		  Amendments resulting from the September 2014 Annual 

Improvements. Discount rate: requirement to use the market 
yields on government bonds denominated in the currency of 
high quality corporate bonds in cases where there is no deep 
market for such bonds for the purpose of discounting post-
employment benefit obligations. Effective date 1 January 2016

ix.		  IAS 34 Interim Reporting
		  Amendments resulting from the September 2014 Annual 

Improvements. Certain disclosures are to be given either in 
the interim financial statements or incorporated by a cross-
reference from the interim financial statements to some other 
statement. These disclosures must also be available to users 
on the same terms and at the same time as the interim financial 
statements for the interim financial report to be complete.

		  Effective date 1 January 2016
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2016

x.		  IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting 
Standards  Consequential amendment to IFRS 7 Financial 
Instruments Disclosures: Servicing contracts disclosures 
and offsetting of financial assets and liabilities disclosures 
in condensed interim financial statements. Effective date 1 
January 2016. 

2.9		 New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but 
not yet effective for financial year beginning 01 January 2016 
and not yet adopted

i.		  IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
		  This new standard provides principles on the measurement, 

timing and recognition of revenue. Effective date 1 January 
2018

ii.		  IFRS 16 Leases
   	  	 Establishes principles for the recognition, measurement, 

presentation and disclosure of leases with the objective of 
ensuring that lesees and lessors provide relevant information 
that faithfully represents lease transactions.

		  Effective date 01 January 2019

iii.	 I	 FRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures
		  Amendments requiring disclosures about the initial application 

of IFRS 9. Additional hedge accounting disclosures resulting 
from the introduction of a hedge accounting chapter in IFRS 9.

		  Effective date 1 January 2018

iv.	 I	 FRS 9 Financial Instruments 
		  Replaces IAS 39. In July 2014 the IASB issued IFRS 9 Financial 

Instruments. The Standard which will replace IAS 39 for 
annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2018 and 
early adoption being permitted. From a classification and 
measurement perspective the new standard will require all 
financial assets except equity instruments and derivatives to 
be assessed based on a combination of the entity’s business 
model for managing the asset and the instruments’ contractual 
cash flow characteristics. Effective 01 January 2018

v.		  IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
		  Amendments to permit an entity to elect to continue to apply 

the hedge accounting requirements in IAS 39 for a fair value 
hedge of the interest rate exposure of a portion of a portfolio 
of financial assets or financial liabilities when IFRS 9 is applied, 
and to extend the fair value option to certain contracts that 
meet the ‘own use’ scope exception, Effective date 1 January 
2018

3.		  Significant accounting policies

3.1 		  Property, Plant and Equipment
		  Items of property, plant and equipment are measured initially 

at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment. Cost includes purchase price and any costs 
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and 
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the 
manner intended by management. Cost also includes the cost 
of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing 
costs for long term projects if the recognition criteria is met. 
Costs of repairs and maintenance are recognized in profit and 
loss as they are incurred.

		  Assets in the course of construction are carried at cost less 
any recognized impairment. Cost includes professional fees, 
import clearance charges and borrowing costs for qualifying 
assets. Depreciation for these assets is on the same basis as 
other assets and only commences when the assets are ready 
for intended use.

		  Property, Plant and Equipment which were previously carried 
at historical cost, are now subsequently measured at fair 
value at date of revaluation less subsequent accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The change 

will ensure the financial statements provide reliable and more 
relevant information.  The change in accounting policy, being 
the initial application of the policy to revalue assets, has been 
dealt with in accordance with IAS 16. Items of property, plant 
and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method, 
so as to write off the assets over the anticipated useful lives. 
The depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values 
of assets are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate at each 
reporting date with the effect of any changes in accounting 
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The useful life 
of the different categories of property, plant and equipment is 
estimated as follows:

		  Asset class	 Years                
		  Buildings                                  	 20-40
		  Telecommunications plant 	 5- 10
		  Stores plant 	 5-10
		  Fixtures and fittings 	 5-20
		  Transport equipment	 3-10
		  Computer Equipment 	 5
		
		  An item of property plant and equipment is derecognized upon 

disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected 
from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising on the disposal 
or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference 
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset and is recognized in the statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income.

3.2 		 Intangible Assets
		  Intangible Assets acquired separately are measured on initial 

recognition at cost. Subsequently they are carried at cost less 
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. 
Amortization commences when the intangible assets are 
available for their intended use and is recognized on a straight-
line basis over their expected useful lives. Intangible assets with 
indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at 
cost less accumulated impairment losses. Amortization ceases 
at the earlier of classification as held for sale or de-recognition.

		  Intangible assets comprise mainly of acquired computer 
software licenses and Indivisible Rights of Use (IRU), which are 
capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and 
bring to use the specified software and Synchronous Transport 
Module (STM). The costs are amortized over the estimated 
useful lives using the straight line method.

		  Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer 
software programmes are recognized as expenses when 
incurred. Internally generated intangible assets are measured 
at their directly attributable cost and only expenditure incurred 
after the project has entered its development phase can be 
included as part of the cost. Direct costs include the software 
development employee costs and an appropriate portion of 
relevant overheads.

		  Computer software development costs recognized as assets 
are amortized over their estimated useful lives as follows:

		  Intangible Asset	 Years
		  SAP software	 5
		  Leap billing software	 5
		  Indivisible Rights of Use               	 20

		  An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no 
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. 
Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible 
asset measured as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognized 
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.
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3.3 		 Investment Property
		  Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or 

for capital appreciation rather than for use in the production 
or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes 
or sale in the ordinary course of business. An investment 
property shall be measured initially at cost. Transaction costs 
shall be included in the initial measurement. At subsequent 
measurement investment property which were previously 
carried at historical cost shall be measured at fair value at 
date of revaluation less any accumulated depreciation and 
any accumulated impairment losses. The change will ensure 
the financial statements provide reliable and more relevant 
information.  The change in accounting policy, being the initial 
application of the policy to revalue assets, has been dealt with 
in accordance with IAS 40. Fair values were determined based 
on valuation performed by an accredited independent valuer.

		  An investment property shall be derecognized on disposal or 
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from 
use and no future economic benefits are expected from its 
disposal. The difference between net disposal proceeds and 
the carrying amount is recognized in profit or loss in the year of 
de-recognition.

3.4 		 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
		  The company at each reporting date assesses whether there 

is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication 
exists, or when annual impairment testing is required the 
company estimates the recoverable amount. If any such 
indication exist, the company shall estimate the recoverable 
amount of the asset. Recoverable amount being the higher of 
fair value less cost to sell and the value in use of the asset. 
If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying 
amount, the carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced to 
its recoverable amount and that reduction is an impairment 
loss. An impairment loss shall be recognized immediately in 
profit or loss unless the asset is carried at revalued amount. An 
impairment loss of a revalued amount is treated as a revaluation 
decrease. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be 
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment 
loss was recognized.

3.5 		L eases
		  A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the 

lessee in return for a payment or series of payments the right 
to use an asset for an agreed period of time. The company 
classifies as finance lease whenever the terms of the lease 
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
to the lessee. Leases that do not meet the finance lease 
recognition criteria are classified as operating leases. Assets 
leased in term of finance lease agreement are capitalized at 
amounts equal at lease inception to the fair value of the leased 
asset or if lower at the present value of the minimum lease 
payments. Capitalized assets are depreciated in terms the 
policy applicable to property, plant and equipment. 

3.6	 	 Inventory
		  Inventories are assets held for sale in the ordinary course of 

business; or in the process of production for such sale; or in the 
form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the production 
process or in the rendering of services. Inventories are valued at 
the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value 
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business 
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs 
necessary to make the sale. The cost of inventories comprises 
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs 
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and 
condition. Inventories that the company still carries but which 
are no longer available on the market are carried at nil value. 
The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realizable 
value and all losses of inventories are recognized as an expense 
in the period the write-down or loss occurs. Items accounted for 
as inventory include installation material, maintenance material 
and network equipment.

3.7	  	 Trade and Other Receivables
		  Trade and other receivables are measured at their cost less 

impairment losses. Trade receivables are composed of an 
extensive customer base, covering residential, and government, 
wholesale, global and corporate customers. A provision for 
impairment of trade receivables is established when there is 
objective evidence that the company will not be able to collect 
all amounts due according to the original terms of contracts 
with customers. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, 
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial 
reorganization and default or delinquency in payments are 
considered indicators that the trade receivables are impaired. 
When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against 
the allowance for credit losses. Subsequent recoveries of 
amounts previously written off are credited against the trade 
receivables impairment provision in profit or loss.

3.71   	Doubtful Debts Provision
		  The company policy applies to all categories of trade 

receivables. A general provision and a specific provision for 
doubtful debts is regularly calculated in relation to payment 
patterns of customers continually re-assessing the payment 
patterns and status of credit limits availed to the customers.

		  A provision for doubtful debts will be established on an account 
by account basis for aged debts greater than 90 days, taking 
into account: 

	 •	 The size and nature of the debt 
	 •	 The debtor in question 

		  The specific and general provisions as at year end are summed 
up and added to the debtors control accounts balances in 
the ledger. The resultant total is then multiplied by 19.5%. This 
effectively becomes the provision for doubtful debts at year 
end, which is subsequently compared with the provision in 
the company’s books. An adjustment, to cater for the change 
(increase or decrease) in the provision is then effected in the 
company’s books.

3.8 		 Financial Instruments
		  A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a 

financial asset of one entity and a financial liability of another. 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when 
the company becomes party to the contractual provisions of 
the instrument.

3.8.1	 Financial Assets
		  Financial assets are classified at initial recognition as financial 

assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, 
held to maturity investments, available for sale financial assets 
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an 
effective hedge.

		  Non derivative financial instruments carried in statement of 
financial position comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade 
and other receivables, trade and other payables and amounts 
owing to and from related parties. These instruments are 
measured initially at fair value and for instruments not at fair 
value through profit or loss and directly attributable costs.

	
3.8.2	 Financial Liabilities
		  Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition as 

financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and 
borrowings, payables or as derivatives designated as hedging 
instruments in an effective hedge. All financial liabilities are 
initially recognized at fair value. Financial liabilities of the 
company include trade and other payables and loans.

	
3.8.3	 Provisions
		  Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount. 

Provisions are recognized when the company has a present 
obligation legal or constructive as a result of past event. It 
should be probable that an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and 
a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation. The amount 
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of the obligation shall be the best estimate of the expenditure 
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the 
reporting period. Where the effect of the time value of money 
is material, the amount of a provision shall be the present 
value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the 
obligation. The discount rate applied shall be a pre-tax rate that 
reflects the current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the liability.

3.9	 Revenue      
 		  Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable the 

economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue 
can be measured reliably, regardless of when payment is made. 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable. Revenue is from the provision of 
telecommunication services, rental, sale and repair of 
telecommunication equipment.

		  The company provides the following services
	 •		 Voice Services - Fixed Telephony
	 •	 Fixed Broadband
	 -		 Leased Lines                               
	 •		 Data -  VSAT data connectivity
	 -		 Optical fibre data links
	 -		 Data links

3.9.1	 Voice Services
		  The company provides voice telephone services. Revenue 

includes installation fees for first time service, monthly rentals 
and usage charges. The service can be prepaid or postpaid. 
For the postpaid service billing is done monthly and revenue 
is recognized when the client is billed. For the prepaid service 
revenue is based on actual usage or upon expiration of the 
usage period. Installation fees revenue is recognized on date 
of connection to our service. Monthly rentals are recognized as 
revenue as the clients are provided access to network based 
on the agreed fixed charges.

3.9.2	 Broadband Internet
		  The company provides leased circuits services. The service is a 

data service. Revenue includes installation fees and rental fees 
for the data services. The service is postpaid and revenue is 
recognized on accrual basis that is when the client is billed at 
the end of each month. The company also provides internet 
services in the form of broadband services. The company 
provides broadband connectivity through Asymmetric Digital 
Subscriber Line. This is a prepaid service and revenue is 
recognized upon usage or on expiration of the usage period. 
Installation fees revenue is recognized on date of connection 
to our service. Monthly rentals are recognized as revenue as 
the clients are provided access to network based on the agreed 
fixed charges.

3.9.3	 Data
		  The company offers satellite services that can deliver voice, data 

and video services. The service can also provide broadband 
via satellite through the Ka Band Vsat. Satellite services are 
postpaid and revenue is recognized on accrual basis that is 
when the client is billed at the end of each month.

3.9.4	 Sale of Goods
		  Revenue from the sale of goods shall be recognized when all 

the following conditions have been satisfied:
	 (a) 	 The entity has transferred to the buyer the significant 	risks and 

rewards of ownership of the goods;
	 (b) 	 The entity retains neither continuing managerial 
			  involvement to the degree usually associated with 
			  ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;
	 (c) 	 The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
	 (d) 	 It is probable that the economic benefits associated 
		  with the transaction will flow to the entity; and
	 (e) 	 The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the 
			  transaction can be measured reliably. 
	

3.9.5	 Other Income
		  This is income from non-core activities for the business that 

is it is income from the sale of goods and services that are 
non-telecommunication. Revenue from the sale of goods is 
recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership 
have passed to the buyer. Revenue from the sale of goods is 
measured at the fair of consideration received or receivable. 
Revenue from services rendered is recognized is recognized 
by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at 
the reporting date. Other income also includes income from the 
rental of properties and income from training services.

3.9.6	 Finance Income
		  This is income earned from financial assets, money market 

placements and accounts at financial institutions.
	
3.9.7	 Deferred Revenue
		  Revenue is deferred when revenue has not yet been earned. 

The Company has deferred income arising from loan and debt 
forgiveness agreements which are conditional. Revenue is 
deferred over the period of condition. Revenue is realized as 
the condition is met and through profit and loss.

3.10 	 Taxation

3.10.1 	Current tax
		  Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the 

amount expected to be recovered from or to be paid to the 
tax authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute 
the date amount are those that are enacted or substantially 
enacted at the reporting date. Current income tax relating to 
items recognized directly in equity and not in the statement 
of comprehensive income. Current tax for current and prior 
periods shall to the extent unpaid be recognized as a liability. If 
the amount already paid in respect of current and prior periods 
exceeds the amount due for those periods the excess shall be 
recognized as an asset.

3.10.2	Deferred tax
		  Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary 

differences between tax bases of assets and liabilities and 
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the 
reporting date. Deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable 
temporary differences. Deferred tax asset is recognized 
for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of 
unused tax losses and unused tax credits. Deferred tax asset 
are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profit will be available against which deductible temporary 
differences , carry forward of unused tax losses and unused 
tax credits can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax 
assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the 
extent that it no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will 
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be 
recovered.

		  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates 
that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized 
or the liability is settled based on tax rates and tax laws that are 
enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.

		  Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss 
is recognized outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are 
recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either 
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Deferred 
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally 
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against 
current liabilities and deferred taxes relate to the same taxable 
authority. 

	
3.10.3	Value Added Tax (VAT)
		  Expenses and assets are recorded net of amount of VAT except 

when the VAT incurred on the purchase of assets or services 
is not recoverable from tax authorities, in which case, the tax is 
recognized as part of the expenses items as applicable. When 
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receivables and payables are stated with the amount of Value 
Added Tax included. The company remits output VAT to the 
revenue authority on a cash basis.

3.11 	E mployee Benefits
		  Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an 

entity in exchange for service rendered by employees or for the 
termination of employment.

3.11.1	 Short term employee benefits
		  Employee benefits other than termination benefits that are 

expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after 
the year end of the annual reporting period in which the 
employees render the related service. The short term benefits 
comprise remuneration in the form of salaries, wages, bonuses, 
employee entitlement to leave pay and medical aid. When an 
employee has rendered service during an accounting period 
the entity shall recognize the undiscounted amount of the short 
term benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service 
as an expense or as a liability (accrued expense).

3.11.2	 Post-employment benefits
		  Employee benefits other than termination benefits and short 

term benefits that are payable after the completion of service. 
They comprise retirement benefits provided through a Defined 
Benefit Plan administered by the Communication and Allied 
Industries Pension Fund a Multi-employer plan. The company 
also contributes to National Social Security Authority. When an 
employee has rendered service during an accounting period 
the entity shall recognize the contribution payable to a defined 
benefit plan as an expense or as a liability (accrued expense).

3.11.3	 Termination benefits
		  Employee benefits provided in exchange for the termination 

of an employee’s employment as a result of either an entity’s 
decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the 
normal retirement date or an employee’s decision to accept an 
offer of benefits in exchange for the termination of employment. 
The company recognizes a liability and expense at the earlier 
of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of those 
benefits and when the entity recognizes costs for restructuring 
that is within the scope of IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent 
Liabilities and Contingent Assets and involves the payment 
of termination benefits. Termination benefits are measured 
according to the terms of the termination contract.

3.12 	 Fair value measurement
		  The company measures financial instruments such as available 

for sale financial assets at fair value at each balance sheet date. 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset 
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction 
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place in the 
principal market for the asset or liability or in the absence of a 
principal market in the most advantageous market for the asset 
or liability. The principal or most advantageous market must be 
accessible to the company. The fair value of the asset or liability 
is measured using the assumptions that market participants 
would use when pricing the asset or liability assuming that 
market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair 
value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account 
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits 
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it 
to another market participant that would use the asset in its 
highest and best use. The valuation techniques that are used are 
those that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value maximizing 
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of 
unobservable inputs.

3.12.1	 Fair value hierarchy
		  All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measures or 

disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within 

the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement.

		  Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets 
for identical assets or liabilities.

		  Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input 
that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or 
indirectly observable.

		  Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input 
that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

		  External valuers are engaged for the valuation of significant 
assets like property, plant and equipment and investment 
property. Selection criteria includes market knowledge, 
reputation, independence and whether professional standards 
are maintained.

3.13 	 Foreign currency transactions
		  The company’s presentation currency is the United States 

Dollar (USD). Foreign currency transactions are recorded on 
initial recognition in the functional currency by applying to the 
foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the 
functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of 
the transaction period. At each reporting date monetary items 
are translated using the closing rate. Non-monetary items that 
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency 
shall be translated using the exchange rate at the date of the 
transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value shall 
be translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair 
value was measured.

3.14 	 Government grants
		  Government grants are assistance by government in the form 

of transfers of resources to an entity in return for past or future 
compliance with certain conditions relating to the operating 
activities of the entity. Government grants including non-
monetary grants at fair value shall not be recognized until there 
is reasonable assurance that the entity will comply with the 
conditions attaching to them and the grants will be received. 
A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation 
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of 
giving immediate financial support with no related costs shall 
be recognized in profit or loss of the period in which it becomes 
receivable. Grants related to income are presented as part of 
profit or loss. Grants related to assets shall be presented in 
the Statement of Financial Position as deferred income or by 
deducting the grant in arriving at the carrying amount of the 
asset.

3.15 	 Current and Non-Current classification
		  The company presents assets and liabilities in the statement 

of financial position using the current and non-current 
classification.

		  An asset is current when it is
	 ∙	 expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in 

the normal operating cycle or
	 •		 held primarily for the purpose of trade
	 •		 expected to be realized within twelve months after the 			

	reporting period
	 • 		 cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being ex			

	changed or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months 	
	after the reporting period

		  A liability is current when
	 •		 it is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle
	 •		 it is held primarily for the purpose of trading
	 •		 it is due to be settled within twelve months after the 
			  reporting period
	 • 		 there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the 

liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 

		  The company classifies all other liabilities that do not meet the 
above definition as non-current.
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 5 	  INVESTMENT PROPERTY	 31 Dec 2016	 Dec  31,2015
		  USD	 USD
	

	  Opening balance  	  1,052,000 	  655,550 
	  Net replacement value 	  1,176,876 	  769,333 
	  Accumulated depreciation 	  (124,876)	  (113,783)
	  Depreciation charge for the year 	  (17,970)	  (11,093)
	  Closing balance  	  1,034,030 	  1,052,000 
	  Net replacement value 	  1,176,876 	  769,333 
	  Revaluation Surplus  	  -   	  407,543 
	  Accumulated depreciation 	  (142,846)	  (124,876)
			 
	 The investment property portfolio has commercial property leased to third parties. The leases have varied running periods and all 

renewals are negotiated with the lessee. Contingent rentals are chargeable for all the tenants equivalent to the monthly rental charge. 
Owner occupancy is less than 20% of the total leasable area for all the buildings classified as investment property. The properties were 
valued by Knight Frank, an international property consultancy firm, on cost basis with reference to open market cost and the value as 
at December 31, 2015 was determined to be $1,052,000. As at 31 December 2016 fair value of Memorial Building was determined to be 
$1,156,308.

		 The company has pledged Memorial Building and Centre for Learning as collateral for a loan of USD 6 000,000 taken with FBC Bank. 
Memorial Building has a carrying amount of USD 1,028,281 and Centre for Learning has a carrying amount of USD 4,917,713. 	
	

			 
	 Included in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income	 31 Dec 2016	 31 Dec 2015
	 is the following rental income and expenses: 	 USD	 USD
			 
	
	 Rental income	  1,111,960 	  1,046,149 
	 “Operating expenses that generated rental income 	 (532,228)	  (647,719)
	 Net rental income	  579,732 	  398,430 
			 
	 Future rental income		
			 
	 Up to 1 year	  2,223,920 	  1,046,149 
	 Over 1 year; less than 5 years	  8,895,679 	  4,184,595 
	 Over 5 years	  11,119,599 	  5,230,743 
	 Total expected receipts 	  22,239,197 	  10,461,487 
			 
6	 INTANGIBLE ASSETS		
	 Opening balance  	  23,557,460 	  20,450,319 
	 Gross carrying amount	  28,002,221 	  22,879,785 
	 Accumulated Amortisation	  (4,444,761)	  (2,429,466)
	 Additions 	  32,553 	  4,957,762 
	 Reclassification  	  (326,857)	  -   
	 Amortisation for the year 	  (2,634,830)	  (1,850,621)
	 Closing balance  	  20,628,327 	  23,557,460 
			 
	 Intangible assets include capitalised development costs for the billing system and acquisition costs for the bandwith in West Indian 

Ocean Cable Company 		
			 
	 Investment in WIOCC 	  16,123,940 	  16,955,551 
	 Billing system 	  1,516,333 	  2,519,000 
	 Others 	  2,988,054 	  4,082,909 
		   20,628,327 	  23,557,460
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7	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS	 31 Dec 2016	 31 Dec 2015
	 US	 USD	 USD	

	
	
	 Cairns Debentures,ZB and West Indian Cable Company (WIOCC) equity instruments			 

	
	 Opening balance 	 795,697 	  1,676,273 
	 Additions (Cairns)	  54,615 	  - 
	 Remeasurement gain/(loss)	  198,522 	  (147,418)
	 Amortization	  (733,158)
	 Closing balance	  1,048,835 	  795,697 
				  

	
	 Financial instruments include shares in ZB Holding and shares in West Indian Ocean Cable Company. ZB Shares were remeasured at 

31 December 2016 in line with the fair value accounting policy resulting in a gain on remeasurement of USD 198,522. During the year 
the company acquired redeemable debenture certificates from Cairns Food.			 
	

	 ZB shares are classified at fair value through other comprehensive income while WIOCC shares and Cairns debentures are carried at 
amortized cost. 		

				  
	

8	 INVENTORIES			 
Manufacturing	 588,460 	  943,209 

	 Telecoms	  5,923,422 	  6,962,980 
	 Transport	  377,308 	  367,976 
	 General	  1,541,607 	  1,788,857 
		   8,430,797 	  10,063,022 
			 
	 The inventory amounts are recorded at values not in excess of recoverable amounts. All inventories are expected to be consumed 

within twelve months.			 
	

			 
9	 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES			 

Trade receivables	  206,076,737 	  195,327,883 
	 Loss from fraud	  -   	  716,035 
	 Other Receivables	  2,913,598 	  9,388,262 
	 IDBZ Receivable	 2,216,738 	  -   
	 Stanbic Escrow	  1,000,000 	  -   
	 Gold Driven Investments Write Off	  -   	  (4,571,252)
	 Allowance for credit losses	  (66,669,335)	  (55,119,335)
		  145,537,738 	  145,741,594 
	
	 Included in receivables are funds in the IDBZ Bank Account and Stanbic Bank Escrow Account. These funds no longer represent cash 

and cash equivalents as they cannot easily be accessed.			 
		

10	 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS			 
Bank and cash balances	 2,239,974 	  3,460,067 

	 Investments held to maturity 	  1,345,787 	  1,066,916 
		   3,585,761 	  4,526,983 
				  

		
11	 AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL			 

Authorized share capital			 
	

11.1	 32 000 ordinary shares 	 32 	  32 
	 of $0.001 each			 

		
11.2	 Issued and fully paid			 

32 000 Ordinary shares of $0.001 each	  32 	  32 
				  

	
11.3	 The issued shares are held by nominees on behalf of the Government of Zimbabwe. 			 
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13	L OCAL LOANS			   	  31 Dec 2016	  31 Dec 2015
					      USD 	  USD 
		  FBC BANK	 IDBZ	 CAIPF	  TOTAL 	  TOTAL 
	  
	
	 Opening balance  	  4,384,615 	  22,222,564 	  1,368,649 	  27,975,828 	  29,409,692 
	  Repayments 	  (2,769,231)	  -   	  (1,368,649)	  (4,137,879)	  (2,746,736)
	  Charges capitalized 	  -   	  1,390,768 	  -   	  1,390,768 	  1,312,872 
	  Closing balance  	  1,615,385 	  23,613,332 	  - 	  25,228,717 	  27,975,828 
						    
13.1	  Short-term portion 	  1,615,385 	  23,613,332 	  - 	  25,228,717 	  27,975,828 
		   1,615,385 	  23,613,332 	  - 	  25,228,717 	  27,975,828 
						    
13.3	 The IDBZ local loans were in respect of the loans that were received from the Government of Zimbabwe through the 

Infrastructural Development Bank for the Mutare-Harare  and Harare-Bulawayo Optic fibre projects. The terms of the loan are as 
follows:					   

						    
	 Interest rate					      5% p.a 
	 Repayment period 					      18 months 
	 Interest calculation period 					      Monthly  
	 Penalty rate					      1% p.a 
	 Effective penalty rate					      6% p.a 

13.4	 The FBC Bank loan was granted by FBC Bank for the FTTH Copper Project. The terms of loan are as follows:			 
		

	 Nominal Interest rate					      12% p.a 
	 Effective Interest rate					      12.68250% p.a 
	 Repayment period 					      26months 
	 Interest calculation period 					      Monthly  
	 The loan is guaranteed by Memorial Building and Centre for Learning.				  

	
						    
	 BORROWING COSTS					   
	 Expensed					      1,807,460 
	 Capitalised					      -   
	 Total for the year					      1,807,460 
	 The effective interest rate is 12.68250%					   
						    
						    
14	 TAXATION				     31 Dec 2016	  31 Dec 2015
					      USD 	  USD 
	

	 Tax expense				     (7,784,027)	  4,108,685 
	 Current tax				    -	 -
	 Deferred tax				     (7,784,027)	   4,108,685 
						    
14.1	 Tax rate reconciliation					   
	 Profit before tax				     (32,676,793)	  9,921,104 
	 Notional tax charge based on profit for the year at 25.75%				     (8,414,274)	  2,554,684 
	 Additional taxation/(savings) resulting from permanent differences			   626,823 	  1,555,460 
	 Other comprehensive income				     1,985 	  (1,474)
	 Withholding tax				     1,440 	  15 
					      (7,784,027)	  4,108,685
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14.2	 Deferred Tax	 31 Dec 2016	  31 Dec 2015
		   USD 	  USD 

	 Analysis of temporary differences		
	 Property, plant and equipment accelerated	  85,932,724 	  71,453,283 
	 Accruals	  (66,263)	  (66,079)
	 Fair value remeasurement gain	  3,425 	  (1,459)
	 Deferred Income	  -   	  (538,222)
	 Provisions	  (612,096)	  (564,188)
	 Unrealized exchange losses	  (4,950,603)	  13,805,436 
	 Allowance for credit losses	  (17,167,354)	  (14,193,229)
	 Net deferred tax liability	  63,139,834 	  69,895,542 
			 
14.3	 Tax Payable/(Refundable)		
	 Opening balance 	  (448,594)	  1,081,771 
	 Tax penalty	  -   	  328,764 
	 Charge for the year	  (1,444,321)	  (189,570)
	 Charge for the year - other comprehensive income	  1,985 	  (1,474)
	 Tax paid	  (803,160)	  (1,668,085)
	 Payment of current tax	  (803,160)	  (1,668,085)
	 Payment of prior year tax		   -   
	 Closing balance  	  (2,694,089)	  (448,594)
			 
15	 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES		
	 Trade payables		
	 Local	  28,194,337 	  41,684,886 
	 Foreign	  29,375,248 	  24,293,063 
		   57,569,586 	  65,977,949 
	 Other payables	  70,355,183 	  62,791,712 
	 Postal and Telecommunications Regulatory Authority of Zimbabwe	  32,790,371 	  28,809,495 
	 Zimbabwe Revenue Authority	  5,535,598 	  4,218,080 
	 Sundry 	  32,029,213 	  29,764,137 
		   127,924,769 	  128,769,661 

15.1	  Loan Interest Payable 	  190,492,220 	  172,005,427 
			 
15.2	  Other Long Term Payable 	  17,365,361 	  -   
	
	 The company is currently carrying out the National Broadband Project (NBB) and Huawei is the supplier of the equipment for the project. 

The NBB Project is being funded by a loan from the China Exim Bank. The loan was secured through an on lent facility with the Government 
of Zimbabwe. The guarantor of the loan is NetOne through the security agreement and discount agreement signed with TelOne.		
		

16	 PROVISIONS		
	 Leave pay	  2,210,166 	  1,646,630 
	 Bonus	  153,358 	  152,960 
		   2,363,524 	  1,799,590 	

Leave pay		
	 Opening balance	  1,646,630 	  2,061,190 
	 Additions	  1,604,417 	  1,218,701 
	 Payments	  (1,040,880)	  (1,633,260)
	 Closing balance	  2,210,166 	  1,646,630 
	 Bonus		
	 Opening balance	  152,960 	  304,854 
	 Additions	  1,700,849 	  2,372,963 
	 Payments	  (929,287)	  (2,524,857)
	 Unused amounts reversed	  (772,163)	  -   
	 Closing balance	  152,358 	  152,960 
			 
	 Leave pay provision and bonus provision are accrued monthly as employees render services in line with their contracts of 

employment.		
			 
17	 REVENUE		
	 Revenue comprises:		
	 Telephone 	  73,139,165 	  96,883,919 
	 Data revenue	  5,401,513 	  6,969,525 
	 Internet revenue	  27,914,653 	  22,071,673 
	 V-Sat revenue	  1,460,773 	  1,559,874 
	 Interconnection revenue	  5,899,711 	  9,868,065 
	 Telephone handsets	  227,120 	  317,183 
		   114,042,935 	  137,670,239

	 Inflows from the principal revenue generation activities of the company that is provision of telecommunication products and services 
are recognised as revenue.
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18	 PAYEMENTS TO OTHER OPERATORS	 31 Dec 2016	 31 Dec 2015
		  USD	 USD
			 
		
	 VSAT handling costs	  2,073,175 	  1,735,687 
	 Telephone foreign handling costs	  994,875 	  1,975,191 
	 Data handling costs	  382,608 	  386,454 
	 Internet handling costs	  5,944,365 	  6,475,700 
	 Local interconnection costs	  11,574,377 	  16,704,453 
		   20,969,400 	  27,277,485 
			 
19	 OTHER  INCOME		
	 Insurance	  398 	  14,544 
	 Deferred Income	  317,423 	  327,619 
	 Rental income	  1,004,818 	  1,042,926 
	 Dividends received	  320,999 	  -   
	 Sale of  processed network cables	  355,746 	  957,748 
	 Centre for Learning Income	  1,545,215 	  1,109,772 
	 Payable write off	  -   	  5,875,590 
	 Sundry income	  1,880,599 	  1,289,933 
		   5,425,198 	  10,618,133 
			 
20	 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES		
	 Stores handling costs	  3,265,700 	  4,858,399 
	 Accommodation costs	  6,824,502 	  7,457,243 
	 Transport costs	  2,947,658 	  3,700,673 
	 Inventory adjustments	  465,931 	  2,389,975 
	 Write  off expenses	  213,832 	  716,035 
	 Operational costs	  29,374,036 	  36,846,270 
		   43,091,658 	  55,968,595 
			 
	 During the year the Board authorized Management to write off a tenant’s debt, Denfarm Properties (Pvt) Ltd.  The tenant breached the 

terms of it’s lease agreement with TelOne in that it; sublet the leased premises to third parties without the written consent of the lessor; 
refused, failed and/or neglected settlement of operating utility bills and  refused or failed to pay rentals in full. TelOne engaged company 
lawyers to take legal action. 	

			 
20.1	 Staff Costs	  41,828,777 	  46,523,610 
			 
21	 NET FINANCE COSTS	  (19,326,414)	  (10,139,532)
	 Interest income	  319,901 	  260,627 
	 Interest expense on current loans	  (1,807,460)	 -
	 Interest expense on legacy loans	  (17,838,856)	  (10,400,160)
			 
22	E XCHANGE GAINS	  (1,435,228)	  12,092,786 
	 Exchange gain foreign on legacy loans balances 	  (1,026,985)	  9,860,607 
	 Exchange gain foreign payables balances 	  (408,242)	  2,232,178 
			 
			 
23	E MPLOYEE BENEFITS		
			 
23.1	 Pension Fund		
	 The Company makes contributions for all eligible employees to a multi employer defined benefit administered by the Communications 

and Allied Industries Pension Fund (CAIPF) providing post-employment benefit to employees of several parastatals in the communications 
industry. 		

			 
	 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS		
	 Short term benefits	  37,062,218 	  40,852,090 
	 Post employment benefits	  4,681,075 	  5,584,727 
	 Other long term benefits	  463,510 	  612,082 
		   42,206,803 	  47,048,898 
			 
	 The Pension fund is a defined benefit plan but there was insufficient information available to account for it as a defined benefit scheme. 

The information available is insufficient to use defined benefit accounting as it is not possible to determine from the rules of the CAIPF, 
to the extent to which the deficit will affect future contributions by employers as there is no prescribed basis for allocation. Furthermore 
data records do not allow the obligation in respect of deferred and current pensioners to be identified by entity. The actuaries of the 
fund ,Quantum, are of the opinion that there is insufficient information available to use defined benefit accounting for the plan. The plan 
cannot be able to identify its share of the underlying financial position with sufficient reliability as the plan exposes participating entities 
to actuarial risks. The post retirement obligations under the CAIPF are accounted for as if it were a defined contribution plan.	

	
	 There is no agreed or prescribed method of allocation on the deficit or surplus on winding up and / or when an entity is withdrawing from 

the plan.
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	 The expense for the year ended 31 December 2016 USD 4,693,889 (2015 USD 5,584,727). Liability as at 31 December 2016 USD 
22,774,601 (2015 USD 17,510,626). The contributions have been discounted using a discount rate of 7% per annum.

		
	 The rules of the fund requires employees to contribute at a rate of 7.5% of pensionable salaries whilst the participating employers are 

require to contribute three times the contributions paid by the employee members or at such rate as the Trustees after consulting the 
actuary decide. The contribution for the year ending 31 December 2017 are expected to go down as the employer’s contribution is ex-
pected to go down from the current 22.5% to 12.1% effective 01 February 2017. 	

	
	 As at 31 December 2015 following which the actuary determined the required employer contribution rate for the future service using 

the Projected Unit Credit method to be 8.3% of salaries. It was further recommended that the balance of the employer contibutions of 
14.2% of salaries be used to amortise the deficit which was USD 65.1million as at 31 December 2015. The actuary determined that if the 
aggregate employer contribution rate was maintained at 22.5% of salaries the deficit could be expected to be amortised over a period 
of 8.5years from 31 December 2015.		

		
	 The Insurance and Pensions Commission(IPEC) requires that Defined Benefit Pension Funds should be at least 75% funded on the 

ongoing basis. The CAIPF was 68% funded on an ongoing basis as at 31 December 2015. The rules of the CAIPF require an actuarial 
valuation to be performed at least every three years but the current practice of CAIPF is to perform annual actuarial valuations.	
	

	 The CAIPF recorded a deficit of USD 65.1 million as at 31 December 2015.		
	 As at 31 December 2015 the company had 1,848(63.2%) of the total 2,925 active employees contributing to the CAIPF. Based on the 

membership as at 31 December 2015 the company is expected to contribute 51.6% of the total contributions due to the  CAIPF.	
	

23.2	 National Social Security Authority Scheme 		
	 This is a defined contribution scheme promulgated under the National Social Security Act of 1989. The Company’s obligations under 

the scheme are limited to specific contributions as legislated from time to time. The contributions for the year ended December 31, 2016 
amounted to USD 531,584 (2015: USD 565,414)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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24	 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS	 31 Dec 2016	 31 Dec 2015
		  USD	 USD

24.1	 Transactions	
	 Communications and Allied Industries Pension Fund		
	 Pension fund contributions	  4,681,075 	  5,584,727 
	 Loan Repayment 	  1,368,649 	  1,131,351 
		   6,049,724 	  6,716,078 
	 Net One (Pvt) Ltd - lease of microwave sites		
	 Cell phone charges, leased circuits and interconnect income	  8,123,803 	  8,263,622 
			 
24.2	 Amounts owing from(debtors) related parties		
	 Net One (Pvt) Ltd 	  288,502 	  16,152,889 
	 Zimpost (Pvt) Ltd 	  53,997 	  42,497 
		  -	 -
24.3	 Amounts owing to (creditors) related parties		
	 Zimpost (Pvt) Ltd	  512,321 	  609,653 
	 NetOne (Pvt) Ltd 	  241,852 	  4,134,798 
	 Communication and Allied Industries Pension Fund	  22,774,601 	  17,510,626 
		   23,528,773 	  22,255,077 
24.4	 Compensation to the Board of Directors and key Management personnel		
			 
	 The  remuneration of  Directors and members of key management during the year was as follows:		
			 
	 Board of Directors		
			 
	 Aggregate emoluments	  72,675 	  88,818 
			 
	 Members of key management 		
	 Short term employee benefits	  871,815 	  1,199,488 
	 Post employment benefits	  78,353 	  104,797 
	 Total emoluments	  1,022,842 	  1,393,103 
			 
	 The remuneration of directors and other members of key management personnel is determined by the board having regard to the 

performance of  individuals and  market trends.		
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25	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 			 
		

25.1	E xposure to credit risk					   
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. 				  
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:				  
	

					   
	

	 Carrying amount			   31 Dec 2016	 31 Dec 2015
				    USD	 USD
					   

	
	 Trade receivables 			    206,076,737 	  195,327,883 
	 Other receivables			    2,913,598 	  9,388,262 
	 Available for sale investments			    1,048,835 	  795,697 
	 Cash and cash equivalents			    3,585,761 	  4,256,983 
				     213,624,930 	  210,038,825 
					   

	
	 Exposure to credit risk was increased by the poor economic performance, however, adequate provision was made against trade 

receivables considered doubtful. The Company’s exposure to credit risk on government debtors is reduced by the fact that Government 
Treasury has promised to pay all government outstanding amounts.				  
	

	 Impairment losses					   
The ageing of trade receivables at the reporting date was as follows:				  

					   
	

		  Gross	 Impairment	 Net	 Net
		  USD	 USD	 USD	 USD

	
	 Not past due	  7,615,294 	  -   	  7,615,294 	  8,809,398 
	 Past due 0-30 days	  7,587,201 	  -   	  7,587,201 	  7,597,606 
	 Past due 31-120 days	  13,261,652 	  -   	  13,261,652 	  13,176,593 
	 More than 120 days	 244,281,925 	  (66,669,335)	  177,612,590 	  112,056,936 
		  272,746,072 	  (66,669,335)	  206,076,737 	  141,640,533 
					   

	
	 The allowance account in respect of trade receivables records impairment losses up to the point the company is satisfied that no 

recovery of the amount owing is possible. At that point, the amount is considered irrecoverable and written off against the financial 
asset directly.				  
	

					   
	

25.2	  Liquidity risk 					   
The following are contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments and excluding the impact of 
netting agreements:				  

					   
	 31-Dec-15	 Carrying 	  Contractual 	  0-12 	 0-12 Months 
		   Amount 	  cash flows 	  Months 	 or more
		   USD 	  USD 	  USD 	 USD
	
	 Non-derivative financial liabilities					   

Trade payables	  65,977,949 	  65,977,949 	  65,977,949 	
	 Other payables	  62,791,712 	  62,791,712 	  62,791,712 	
	 Loans	  175,756,878 	  175,756,878 	  127,922,776 	  47,834,102 
		   304,526,539 	  304,526,539 	  256,692,437 	  47,834,102 
					   

	
	 31-Dec-16	 Carrying	 Contractual	 0-12	 0-12 Months
		  Amount	 cash flows	 Months	 or more
		  USD	 USD	 USD	 USD
	
	 Non-derivative financial liabilities					   

Trade payables	  57,569,586 	  57,569,586 	  57,569,586 	
	 Other payables	 70,355,183 	  70,355,183 	  70,355,183 	
	 Loans	  173,683,454 	  173,683,454 	  133,332,007 	  40,351,447 
		   301,608,223 	  301,608,223 	  261,256,776 	  40,351,447 
					   

	
	 The above non derivative financial liabilities are all classified as financial liabilities measured at amortized cost. The Company had no 

derivative financial liabilities as at December 31, 2016.				  
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25.3	 Currency risk 				  
	

	E xposure to currency risk				  
The company’s exposure to foreign currency risk is attributable to the  Euro (EURO), Japanese Yen (YEN), and Norwegian Kroner (NOK) 
denominated monetary assets and liabilities. The exposure was as follows at 31 December 2016, based on notional amounts: 		
			 

		
		  Receivables	 Payables	 Net exposure
					   

	
	 2015				  

EURO	  - 	  29,909,455 	  29,909,455 
	 YEN	  - 	  93,800,833 	  93,800,833 
	 NOK	  - 	  1,595,786 	  1,595,786 
					   

	
	 2016				  

EURO	  - 	  28,929,474 	  28,929,474 
	 YEN	  - 	  96,860,491 	  96,860,491 
	 NOK	  - 	  1,616,242 	  1,616,242 
				  
	 The following significant exchange rates applied during the year :				  

				  
		  31 Dec 2016	 31 Dec 2015

			   USD	 USD
	

	 EURO		  1.08	  1.12 
	 YEN		  119.87	  123.78 
	 NOK		  8.92	  9.04 
					   

	   
25.4	 Currency risk 	
	
	 Sensitivity analysis				  

	A 10% fluctuation of the United States dollar against the Euro, Japanese Yen and Norwegian Kroner would have increased/decreased 
equity and profit or loss by the amounts reflected below. This analysis is based on foreign currency exchange rate variances that the 
company considered to be reasonably possible at the end of the reporting period. The analysis assumes all variables remain the 
same.				  
			 

			   Equity 	 Profit or loss
	 Effect		  USD 	  USD 
					   

December 31,  2015				  
EURO	 			 
10% appreciation		  (2,990,946)	  (2,990,946)

	 10% depreciation		   2,990,946 	  2,990,946 
					   

	
	 YEN				  

10% appreciation		   (9,380,083)	  (9,380,083)
	 10% depreciation		  9,380,083 	  9,380,083 
					   

NOK				  
10% appreciation		  (159,579)	  (159,579)

	 10% depreciation		   159,579 	  159,579 
		
	 December 31,  2016				  

EURO			 
	 10% appreciation		  (2,892,947)	  (2,892,947)
	 10% depreciation		  2,892,947 	  2,892,947 
		
	 YEN			 
	 10% appreciation		  (9,686,049)	  (9,686,049)
	 10% depreciation		  9,686,049 	  9,686,049 
		
	 NOK			 
	 10% appreciation		  (161,624)	  (161,624)
	 10% depreciation		  161,624 	  161,624
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25.5	 Interest rate risk	 31 Dec 2016	 31 Dec 2015
		  USD	 USD
	
	 As at 31 December 2016, the interest rate profile of the company’s 
	 interest bearing- financial instruments was:		
	 Fixed rate risk		
	 Financial assets	  1,345,787 	  1,066,916 
	 Financial liabilities	  173,683,454 	  175,756,879 
		   175,029,240 	  176,823,795 
		
25.6	 Treasury and financial risk management			 

The main risks arising from the company’s financial instruments are market risk (which includes currency risk and 
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The company does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative 
purposes. The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the company’s risk 
management framework. The company’s risk management policies are reviewed by management on a regular basis for 
adequacy in being able to manage any changes in risks arising from changes in the operating environment.		
			 
	

26	 Going concern
		
	L oan repayments			 

		
	 The company defaulted in interest and principal repayments on foreign loans. Outstanding loans are detailed in note 
	 12 and 13.			 

	
26.1	 Net Liability Position	 31 Dec 2016	 31 Dec 2015
		  USD	 USD
	

	 Total Assets	  489,744,186 	  478,300,318 
	 Total Liabilities	  600,939,047 	  577,261,519 
	 Net Position	 (111,194,861)	  (98,961,201) 
		
	 Though the company has a net liability position and has not been able to honour its loan obligations, it is pursuing a 

business transformation strategy which is set to turnaround the company.  Projects that are currently being implemented 
involve modernisation of the network with the aim of improving revenue and managing costs.   The company has also 
sought a debt warehousing arrangement amounting to $360 million.  Although the loans are still on TelOne’s statement 
of financial position, the government is aware of its obligations in terms of the guarantees rendered.  The company 
also has significant assets of strategic importance to the government of the Republic of Zimbabwe. Furthermore,  the 
directors are not aware of any other material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. 		
		

	 The company has also embarked on the National Backbone Network and Broadband Access Project which has been 
accorded the national project status. The project will totally revamp the network thereby improving service delivery. The 
implementation of project will bring about positive cashflows which will improve the net liability position.		
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